
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Solid Waste Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of staff's recommendation to award Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. to conduct post-closure 


environmental monitoring and compliance activities, and to allow an $11,000 Fiscal Year 2011 budget adjustment to recognize an 


increase in the revenue and expenditure accounts for Solid Waste hosting fees.


Solid Waste Management includes overseeing and monitoring post-closure compliance activities required by Georgia Solid Waste 


Management Regulations (391-3-4.14) and complying with other regulatory programs. The scope of work includes the qualified firm 


conducting groundwater and methane monitoring;  performing a methane remediation study for anticipated O&M upgrades; additional 


installation of a methane system (if needed); a greenhouse gas report required by recently promulgated, federally-mandated regulations 


requiring amounts of carbon dioxide emitted from landfills be determined and annually reported.   Recent methane-monitoring data and 


maintenance conducted at the north side facility has demonstrated a need for minor upgrades to venting systems be conducted in order 


to maintain the county’s compliance status. 


 


Six firms responded to this RFP.  Each proposal was evaluated on project understanding, technical approach, qualifications and cost. 


criteria established in the RFP.  Jacobs Engineering Inc. was the 2nd lowest bid exceeding the lowest proposal by $5,230. 


Staff is asking the Board to award Proposal P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. for an not-to-exceed amount of $82,270 for a 12-


month period to conduct post-closure environmental monitoring and compliance activities.  Additionally, staff is asking for Board approval 


of both revenue and expenditure increases in the amount of $11,000 in the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund to cover the additional amount 


of post-closure care expenditures for the 2011 fiscal year.


Funding for this proposal will come from Solid Waste host fee collections. Collections from host fees have exceeded the budgeted  


amount in FY 2010 and so far in FY 2011.


Yes 7/22/2010 


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 18, 2010





















		Solid Waste - #P764 Environme...g Services Agenda Request File.pdf

		Solid Waste - #P764 Environmental and Engineering Services Back-up










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of adoption of Ordinance 2010-09, proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, 


by amending Articles V and VII. 


Proposed amendments to  Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations are in conjection with the recently adopted amendments 


to the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations and reflect county department reorganization made in early 2009 that moved stormwater 


management and environmental program functions from the Public Works Department to the Stormwater Management Department.  


 


Amendments to Article V, Nonresidential Landscape Requirements, adds a definition section; clarifies when a landscape plan is required; 


adds wording to reflect current policies; and deletes zoning buffer requirements that are referenced in current zoning regulations .   


 


Variance  procedures and a penalty section have been added to the Watershed Protection Ordinance.  Other amendments to this 


ordinance satisfy Department of Community Affairs environmental planning requirements. Amendments to these articles include content 


rearrangement to simplify use and understanding of submittal requirements and department name changes. 


Adoption of Ordinance 2010-09, proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,  Articles V and 


VII. 


Not applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 3, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 1 - 


STATE OF GEORGIA  
FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2010-09 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, ARTICLE VII, WATERSHED 
PROTECTION; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; 
TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 
Commissioners thereof; 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 
regulation of soil erosion and sedimentation control for land disturbance activities as allowed by 
the State of Georgia; 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia 
shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1.  That Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article VII. Watershed Protection 
Ordinance of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced by a new Article VII. entitled “Fayette County Watershed Protection Ordinance” to read 
as follows: 
 


ARTICLE VII.  WATERSHED PROTECTION ORDINANCE 


Section 8-201. Introduction 


It is hereby determined that buffers adjacent to streams provide numerous benefits including: 


1. Protecting, restoring and maintaining the chemical, physical and biological integrity 
of streams and their water resources, 


2. Removing pollutants delivered in urban stormwater, 


3. Reducing erosion and controlling sedimentation, 


4. Protecting and stabilizing stream banks, 


5. Providing for infiltration of stormwater runoff, 


6. Maintaining base flow of streams, 


7. Contributing organic matter that is a source of food and energy for the aquatic 
ecosystem, 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 2 - 


8. Providing tree canopy to shade streams and promote desirable aquatic habitat, 


9. Providing riparian wildlife habitat, 


10. Furnishing scenic value and recreational opportunity; and 


11. Providing opportunities for the protection and restoration of greenspace. 


Section 8-202. Definitions 
 


Base Flood.  The flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year, also known as the 100-year flood. 
 
Base Flood Elevation. The highest water surface elevation anticipated at any given point 
during the base flood. 
 


Canopy Tree.  Any tree having reached a relatively tall height compared to surrounding trees 
and vegetation and providing shade from its foliage mass; also individual or tree groups 
forming an overhead cover.  Examples include oak, maple, hickory, beech, pecan, sycamore, 
sweet gum, poplar, ash, river birch, long leaf pine, and loblolly pine trees. 
 


Ground Cover.  A plant with a low-growing, spreading habit, grown specifically to cover the 
ground, generally not attaining a height of more than two (2) feet.  
 
Impervious Surface.  The area where a man-made structure or surface prevents the infiltration 
of storm water into the ground below the structure and/or surface. Examples include buildings, 
paved roads, paved driveways, paved parking lots, swimming pools, or patios. 
 
Large Water Supply Watershed. A watershed area which is greater than 100 square miles as 
defined by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division. 
 
Natural Vegetation.  Natural vegetation is a generally undisturbed, maintenance-free, self-
perpetuating stand of vegetation comprised of indigenous shrubs, flowers, wild grasses, and 
trees. 
 
Nitrification Field.  A nitrification field shall be any area used for the on-site disposal of 
wastewater. 
 
Pollutant.  Any substance as certain chemicals or waste products, that renders the air, soil, 
water or other natural resource harmful or unsuitable. 
 
Reservoir.  A reservoir shall be an existing or future impoundment of water for water supply 
purposes as identified by Resolution of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished 
from a tree by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 
 
Small Water Supply Watershed. A watershed area which is less than 100 square miles as 
defined by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division. 
 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 3 - 


State Water.  Any and all rivers, streams, creeks, branches, lakes, reservoirs, ponds, drainage 
systems, springs, wells, and other water bodies of surface or subsurface water, natural or 
artificial, lying within or forming a part of the boundaries of the state that are not entirely 
confined and retained completely upon the property of a single individual, home owners 
association, partnership, or corporation.  (Amended June 9, 2005) 
 
Stream Bank. The uppermost part of the bank marked by a break in slope (as defined by the 
Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division). A stream bank 
is not necessarily the water’s edge. 
 
Tree.  A self supporting perennial plant having one (1) or more stems or trunks, that, at 
maturity, has one or more stems or trunks that  attain a diameter of at least two (2) inches, a 
more or less definitely formed crown of foliage; and a height of ten (10) feet or more. 
 
Tributaries and Streams. State waters, whether named or unnamed, that continuously flow to 
major water supply streams. 
 
Utility.  A public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, 
electric power lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines, roads, driveways, bridges, river/lake access 
facilities, storm water systems and railroads or other utilities identified by a local government. 
 


Understory Tree.  Any tree, which is of relatively lesser height and spread than surrounding 
canopy trees, but still provides shade and a degree of protection to the earth and vegetation 
beneath it.  Examples include dogwood, cherry, red bud, sassafras, crabapple, pear, American 
holly, red cedar, and magnolia trees. 
 
Water Supply Reservoir.  A governmentally-owned impoundment of water for the primary 
purpose of providing water to one or more governmentally owned public drinking water 
systems. This excludes the multipurpose reservoirs owned by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers. 
 
Water Supply Watershed.  The area of land upstream of a governmentally-owned public 
drinking water intake.  
 


Watershed Buffer.  The area of a parcel set aside to provide a separation between the use(s) on 
the parcel and adjoining parcel(s) and a state waters requiring a buffer through the use of 
natural vegetation, replanting, and supplemental plantings.   
 
Watershed Setback. The area of a parcel where all structures, septic tanks, nitrification fields 
and any impervious surfaces shall be prohibited.  Grading, filling and earthmoving shall be 
minimized within the setback.  
 


Wrested Vegetation.  Wrested vegetation is vegetation that has been disturbed, moved, or 
removed by flowing water creating a clear demarcation between water flow and vegetative 
growth. 


Section 8-203. General Provisions 


 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 4 - 


(a) Purpose and Intent.  Ordinance is to help ensure the public health, safety, environment, and 
general welfare; to minimize public and private losses due to erosion, siltation and water 
pollution; to preserve stream water quality; and to comply with the laws of the State of 
Georgia pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8 by provisions :  


1. Create buffers and setbacks along state waters in Fayette County for stream bank 
stabilization, water resource protection, and protection of aquatic and riparian habitat. 


2. Minimize land development within such buffers and setbacks by limiting development 
activities within these protected areas and by requiring authorization for any such 
activities.  


(b) Applicability.  The following large and small water supply watersheds,  designated major 
water supply streams, named tributaries, minor unnamed streams, and waters requiring a state 
buffer located in and out of the large and small water supply watersheds shall be governed by 
this Article.   This Ordinance shall be applicable to any parcel within unincorporated Fayette 
County that has been created/reconfigured after May 28, 1987, unless it is a minor revision to 
a Recorded Final Plat/Minor Subdivision Plat as defined in Article XIII of the Fayette County 
Developmental Regulations.   


(c) Designation of Ordinance Administrator.  The Stormwater Management Director shall 
administer and implement the provisions of this ordinance.  


(d) Compatibility with Other Regulations.  This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal 
any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other 
provision of law.  The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any 
other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this 
ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, 
regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher 
protective standards for human health or the environment shall control. 


(e) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of 
this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment 
shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or 
clause of this ordinance. 


(f) Watershed Buffer/Setback Access. Vegetation within a watershed buffer/setback area shall 
not be disturbed except for access and utilities approved by The Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department.   


  


(g) Water Supply Watersheds: Fayette County contains one (1) large water supply watershed and 
four (4) small water supply watersheds as indicated on the Fayette County Watershed 
Protection Map,  


1. The Flint River is the only large water supply watershed in Fayette County where intakes 
for Fayette County, Clayton County and the City of Griffin are located. This water supply 
watershed does not contain a reservoir.    


2. The four (4) small water supply watersheds are:       







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 5 - 


a. Line Creek Watershed where Fayette County and Coweta County intakes are 
located.  This water supply watershed is the location of the proposed Lake 
McIntosh (a water supply reservoir); 


b. Flat Creek Watershed where a Fayette County intake is located.  Flat Creek is a 
named tributary that flows into Lake Kedron and then into Lake Peachtree (both 
are water supply reservoirs); 


c. Whitewater Creek Watershed where Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville 
intakes are located.  This water supply watershed does not contain a reservoir; and 


d. Horton Creek Watershed where a Fayette County intake is located.  Antioch Creek 
and Woolsey Creek are named tributaries that flow into Lake Horton (a water 
supply reservoir). 


(h) State Waters Determination. For purposes of this ordinance, the Stormwater Management 
Department shall make state water determinations, but will not delineate said waters.  Recorded 
drainage easements and ditches/swales used for conveying wet-weather flows (i.e., no base 
flow) shall not require a watershed buffer. 


 


Section 8-204. Minimum Watershed Protection Requirements. The following watershed buffer and 
setback requirements shall be required on all state waters requiring a buffer within 
unincorporated Fayette County.  
 
No sewage treatment facility, dumping, discharging, releasing, spraying, distributing of any 
toxic or other pollutant is allowed onto the watershed buffer and setback. 


  
Watershed buffer areas may be hand thinned or hand trimmed of vegetation in accordance with 
the Fayette County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance. 


Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural watershed buffer and 
setback.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Article IX and Article IV. 


The watershed buffer shall only constitute 50 percent of a livestock containment area.  


The watershed buffer shall only extend for 1,000 feet from the wrested vegetation of state 
waters requiring a buffer. If the watershed buffer exceeds the said 1,000 feet then the 1,000 feet 
will become the watershed buffer and watershed setback will not be applied. 


For (c), (d) and (e) only the watershed buffer  may be reduced to 100 feet  for activities that do 
not require grubbing or tilling, such as tree harvesting without stump removal, if and only if, a 
copy of documentation submitted to Forestry Commission is submitted to Fayette County 
Stormwater Management prior to requesting a reduction in the watershed buffer.  


(a) The following shall apply to any property within 1,000 feet of a reservoir: 
 


1. Minimum watershed buffer 150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation 
or base flood elevation, whichever is greater. 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 6 - 


(b) The following shall apply to Antioch Creek, Flat Creek, Gin Branch, Haddock Creek, Horton 
Creek, Line Creek, Trickum Creek, and Woolsey Creek located within Lake Horton, Lake 
Kedron/Lake Peachtree and Line Creek Reservoirs watersheds:  


 


1. Minimum watershed buffer is 100 feet as measured from the wrested 
vegetation. 


2. Minimum watershed setback  is 50 feet as measured from the  buffer. 


(c) The following shall apply to the Flint River, Whitewater Creek and all state waters 
requiring a watershed buffer within 1,000 feet of the above named streams: 


1. Minimum watershed buffer is 400 feet as measured from the wrested 
vegetation or is the 100 feet from the  base flood elevation, whichever is 
greater. 


2. Minimum watershed setback is 50 feet as measured from the buffer. 


 


(d) The following shall apply to Ginger Cake Creek, Pelham Creek, Perry Creek, South Camp 
Creek, Sandy Creek, Shoal Creek, Tar Creek, and Whitewater Creek within the Whitewater 
Creek Watershed; Gay Creek, Morning Creek, Murphy Creek, North Camp Creek, and 
Nash Creek, within the Flint River Watershed; and all other state waters requiring a buffer 
within 1000 feet of the above named streams: 


1. Minimum watershed buffer is 200 feet  from wrested vegetation or 100 feet 
from  base flood elevation, whichever is greater. 


2. Minimum watershed setback is 50 feet as measured from the buffer. 


(e) The following shall apply to all other perennial streams within the Flint River Watershed, 
the Whitewater Creek Watershed and all state waters requiring a buffer within 1,000 feet of 
these minor perennial streams. 


1. Minimum l watershed buffer - 100 feet  from wrested vegetation or 50 feet 
from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. Minimum 
watershed setback  is 50 feet as measured from the buffer.  


(f) All state waters requiring a buffer not otherwise protected by Section 208(a)-(e) of this 
ordinance shall meet the following requirements. 


1. Minimum watershed buffer shall be maintained for 50 feet from wrested vegetation 
measured horizontally from both side of the stream.   


2. Minimum watershed setback 25 feet as measured from the buffer.  


3. This section of the ordinance shall not apply to the following activities: 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 7 - 


a. Agricultural operation as defined in Section 8-243(5) of Fayette County’s 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and 


b. Forestry land management practices as defines in Section 8-243(6) of 
Fayette County’s Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance. 


(g) The following restrictions shall apply specifically to Large Water Supply Watersheds as 
identified in the ordinance: 


1. New facilities located within seven (7) miles of a water supply intake or water supply 
reservoir, which handle hazardous materials of the types and amounts determined by 
the Department of Natural Resources, shall perform their operations on impermeable 
surfaces having spill and leak collection systems as prescribed by the Department of 
Natural Resources.   


(h) The following restrictions shall apply specifically to Small Water Supply Watersheds as 
identified in the ordinance: 


1. New facilities located within seven (7) miles of a water supply intake or water supply 
reservoir, which handle hazardous materials of the types and amounts determined by 
the Department of Natural Resources, shall perform their operations on impermeable 
surface having spill and leak collection systems as prescribed by the Department of 
Natural Resources.   


2. The impervious surface area, including all public and private structures, utilities, or 
facilities, of the entire water supply watershed shall be limited to 25 percent, or 
existing use, whichever is greater. 


3. New hazardous waste treatment or disposal facilities are prohibited. 


Section 8-205. Other Water Quality Considerations. Owner Responsibility. It shall be the 
responsibility of every owner, developer or builder to present required plans and to 
comply with Article IX. 


Section 8-206. Watershed Buffer Protection and Replacement.  Vegetation within a 
watershed buffer, as defined in this Ordinance, shall not be disturbed except as 
indicated herein.  Where a watershed buffer area is otherwise disturbed, it shall be 
replanted according to this Ordinance. 


(a) Watershed Buffer Replacement Plan Requirements.  A  Watershed Buffer Replacement 
Plan is required for the replacement/replanting of natural vegetation: 


1. A landscape plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect registered in the State of 
Georgia. 


2. A landscape plan shall show two (2) canopy trees with a minimum trunk caliper of 
two and one half (2 ½) inches (at six [6] inches from the ground) for every 1,000 
square feet of disturbed buffer area on the site. 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 8 - 


3. A landscape plan shall show one (1) understory tree with a minimum trunk caliper on 
one (1) inch (at six [6]  inches from the ground) for every 1,000 square feet of 
disturbed buffer area on the site. 


4. Required trees shall be randomly placed so that the mature canopy covers the buffer 
area. All disturbed buffer areas shall be 100 percent covered with deciduous trees, 
shrubs, and/or ground cover (not requiring mowing). 


(b) Watershed Buffer Replacement Plan Check Sheet.  A  Watershed Buffer Replacement plan 
shall contain the following information: 


1. Name, address, and telephone number of property owner. 


2. Name, address, telephone number, and seal of landscape architect who prepared the 
plan. 


3. Site location map, north point, and scale of drawings. 


4. Show all pertinent site features:  buildings, walks, drives, underground utilities, water 
bodies, etc. 


5. Show all property lines, distances to bodies of water and/or streams, and the limits of 
the natural buffer areas. 


6. Show calculations on the plan for:  total area, buffer area disturbed (in inches and 
square feet).  Indicate numbers of canopy and understory trees required by ordinance. 


7. Planting key:  botanical and common name of all plant materials proposed; quantity 
of each species, size of plant material (caliper, height, width); condition (i.e. balled 
and burlapped, container grown, bare root, collected, etc.); and 


8. Submit three (3) copies of plans for review.  One (1) will be returned upon approval. 


Section 8-207. Variance Procedures  The following variance and appeals procedures shall 
apply to an owner/operator or developer who has been denied a permit for a development 
activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit because it is clear that the 
proposed development activity would be inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance. A 
request for a variance may be submitted by an owner/operator who has been denied a permit by 
the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department or by an owner/operator or developer 
who has not previously applied for a permit for the reasons stated herein above. 


 
Variances will be considered only in the following cases: 


a. When a property's shape, topography or other physical conditions prevents land 
development unless a buffer/setback variance is granted.   


b. Unusual circumstances, that when strict adherence to the minimal buffer/setback 
requirements in the ordinance would create an extreme hardship. 


 
 (1) Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted to the 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department.  All such requests shall be heard 
and decided in accordance with plan review procedures established by the Fayette County 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 9 - 


Stormwater Management Department.  At a minimum, such procedures shall include 
notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.  


 
(2) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette 
County Planning Commission as established by Fayette County in accordance with 
procedures issued by the Fayette County Planning Commission.  At a minimum, such 
procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard. 


 
(3)   Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Planning Commission may 


appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of 
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.  


 
(5)   Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a functionally 


dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no reasonable alternative 
exists, and the development is protected by methods that minimize buffer disturbances.  


 
(7)   In reviewing such requests, the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and 


Fayette County Planning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant 
factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.  


 
(8)  Conditions for Variances:  
 


(a) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:  
 
(i) a finding of good and sufficient cause; and  
 
(ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 


exceptional hardship.  
 


(c) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice 
specifying the difference between the current buffer(s) and setback(s) 
requirements and the buffer(s) and setback(s) allowed by the variance. 


 
(d) The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall maintain the 


records of all appeal actions. 
  
(9) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the 


request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County Planning Commission shall 
deem necessary to the consideration of the request. 


 
(10) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this Ordinance, 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and the Fayette County Planning 
Commission may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem 
necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this Ordinance.  


 
(11) Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.” 
 
(12) At a minimum, a variance request shall include the following information: 


 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 10 - 


a. A site map that includes locations of all streams, wetlands, floodplain boundaries 
and other natural features, as determined by field survey; 


b. A description of the shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other 
physical characteristics of the property; 


c. A detailed site plan that shows the locations of all existing and proposed 
structures and other impervious cover, the limits of all existing and proposed land 
disturbance, both inside and outside the buffer and setback.  The exact area of the 
buffer to be affected shall be accurately and clearly indicated; 


d. Documentation of unusual hardship should the buffer be maintained; 
e. At least one alternative plan, which does not include a buffer or setback 


intrusion, or an explanation of why such a site plan is not possible; 
f. A calculation of the total area and length of the proposed intrusion; 
g. A stormwater management site plan, if applicable; and, 
h. Proposed mitigation, for the intrusion.  If mitigation is not proposed, the request 


must explain why. 
 
(13) The following factors will be considered in determining whether to issue a variance: 


 
a. The shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other physical 


characteristics of the property; 
b. The locations of all streams on the property, including along property boundaries; 
c. The location and extent of the proposed buffer or setback intrusion; and, 
d. Whether alternative designs are possible which require less intrusion or no 


intrusion; 
e. The long-term and construction water-quality impacts of the proposed variance; 


and, 
f. Whether issuance of the variance is at least as protective of natural resources and 


the environment. 


Section 8-208. PENALTIES  


 


In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been completed 
by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of the 
following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice of 
violation was directed.   Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 
following penalties, the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall first notify the 
owner/operator or other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a 
reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation 
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be 
sufficient) to cure such violation.  In the event the owner/operator or other responsible person 
fails to cure such violation after such notice and cure period, the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any one 
or more of the following penalties. 
 
(1) Stop Work Order -The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may issue 


a stop work order which shall be served on the owner/operator or other responsible 
person.  The stop work order shall remain in effect until the owner/operator or other 
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or 
has otherwise cured the violation or violations described therein, provided the stop work 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 11 - 


order may be withdrawn or modified to enable the owner/operator or other responsible 
person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such violation or violations.  


 
(2) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Department may suspend, revoke or modify any permit authorizing any 
development on the project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated 
after the owner/operator or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set 
forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, 
provided such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department may deem necessary) to enable the owner/operator 
or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such 
violations. 


 
(3) Civil Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance or in the event 


the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set 
forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations described therein 
within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation 
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be 
sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may impose a 
penalty not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the severity of the violation) for each day the 
violation is not remediated after receipt of the notice of violation. 


 
(4) Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the 


event the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures 
set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations described 
therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation 
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be 
sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may issue a citation 
to the owner/operator or other responsible person, requiring such person to appear in 
Fayette County State Court to answer charges for such violation.  Upon conviction, such 
person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $2,500.00 per day, per violation or a 
sentence of imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon 
which any violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense. 


 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that 
all Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon 
their enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable 
and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 
Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, 







11/12/2010 9:59:39 AM - 12 - 


paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 
other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, 
for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 
unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is 
the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality 
or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article 
shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 
 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless 
otherwise specified herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2010. 
 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


     FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


________________________________________ 


JACK R. SMITH, CHAIRMAN 
ATTEST: 


 
_________________________ 
Carol Chandler, County Clerk 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 1 - 


 


ARTICLE VII.  WATERSHED PROTECTION ORDINANCE 


 


Section 8-201. Introduction 


It is hereby determined that buffers adjacent to streams provide numerous benefits including: 


1. Protecting, restoring and maintaining the chemical, physical and biological 
integrity of streams and their water resources, 


2. Removing pollutants delivered in urban stormwater, 


3. Reducing erosion and controlling sedimentation, 


4. Protecting and stabilizing stream banks, 


5. Providing for infiltration of stormwater runoff, 


6. Maintaining base flow of streams, 


7. Contributing organic matter that is a source of food and energy for the aquatic 
ecosystem, 


8. Providing tree canopy to shade streams and promote desirable aquatic habitat, 


9. Providing riparian wildlife habitat, 


10. Furnishing scenic value and recreational opportunity; and, 


11. Providing opportunities for the protection and restoration of greenspace. 


Therefore, Fayette County establishes watershed protection policies where watershed protection areas 
are hereby to identifiedy, classifiedy, and regulated watershed protection areas for the purpose of 
insuring the preservation and improvement of water quality and for complying with laws of the State of 


Georgia pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8. 


Section 8-202. Definitions 
 
The following definitions shall be utilized in the administration of the Watershed Protection Ordinance. 
 


Base Flood.  The flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year, also known as the 100-year flood. 
 
Base Flood Elevation. The highest water surface elevation anticipated at any given point 
during the base flood. 
Canopy Tree.  Any tree having reached a relatively tall height compared to surrounding trees 
and vegetation and providing shade and protection to the earth and vegetation beneath it from 
its foliage mass; also individual or tree groups forming an overhead cover.  Examples include 
oak, red maple, hickory, beech, pecan, sycamore, sweetgum, poplar, ash, river birch, long leaf 
pine, and loblolly pine and Virginia pine trees. 


 
Flood Hazard Area.  The area possibly threatened by periodic flooding as determined by 
various date, e.g. maps provided by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 2 - 


Development, United States Soil Conservation Service, Army Corps of Engineers, or 
hydrologic studies utilizing generally accepted engineering practices.  Flood hazard areas shall 
include all lands underneath a permanent body of water, e.g. a lake, pond, river, and stream, 
and all land within the limits of a flood having a 100-year return frequency. 
 
Ground Cover.  Natural plant material such as vines, shrubs, or grasses which would not 
normally A plant with a low-growing, spreading habit, grown specifically to cover the 
ground, generally not attaining a height of more than two (2) feet.  
 


Impervious Surface.  The area where a man-made structure or surface which prevents the 
infiltration of storm water into the ground below the structure and/or surface. Examples 
areinclude buildings, paved roads, paved driveways, paved parking lots, swimming pools, or 
patios. 
 
Large Water Supply Watershed. A watershed area which is greater than 100 square miles as 
defined by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division. 
 
Natural Vegetation.  Natural vegetation shall connote is a generally undisturbed, maintenance-
free, self-perpetuating stand of vegetation comprised of indigenous shrubs, flowers, wild 
grasses, and trees. 
 
Nitrification Field.  A nitrification field shall be defined as any system area used for the on-
site disposal of wastewater. 
 
Pollutant.Any substance, as certain chemicals or waste products, thatrenders the air, soil, wa
ter, or other natural resource harmful or unsuitable. 
 
Reservoir.  A reservoir shall be an existing or future impoundment of water for water supply 
purposes as identified by Resolution of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished 
from a tree by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 
 
Small Water Supply Watershed. A watershed area which is less than 100 square miles as 
defined by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division. 
 
State Water.  Any and all rivers, streams, creeks, branches, lakes, reservoirs, ponds, drainage 
systems, springs, wells, and other water bodies of surface or subsurface water, natural or 
artificial, lying within or forming a part of the boundaries of the state which that are not 
entirely confined and retained completely upon the property of a single individual, home 
owners association, partnership, or corporation.  (Amended June 9, 2005) 
 
Stream Bank. The uppermost part of the bank marked by a break in slope (as defined by the 
Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division). A sStream bank 
is not necessarily the water’s edge. 
 


 Tree.  Tree. A self-supporting woody perennial plant that, at maturity, has one (1) or 
 more stems or trunks that  attain a diameter of at least three (3) inches;  a more or less 
 definitely formed crown of foliage; and a height of 10 feet or more. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 3 - 


 
 
Tributaries and Streams.  Tributaries and streams, State waters, whether named or unnamed, 
that continuously flow to major water supply streams. 
 
Utility.  A public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, 
electric power lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines, roads, driveways, bridges, river/lake access 
facilities, storm water systems and railroads or other utilities identified by a local government. 
 
Understory Tree.  Any tree, which is of relatively lesser height and spread than surrounding 
canopy trees, but still provides shade and a degree of protection to the earth and vegetation 
beneath it.  Examples include dogwood, cherry, red bud, sassafras, crabapple, pear, American 
holly, red cedar, and magnolia trees. 
 
Water Supply Reservoir.  A governmentally-owned impoundment of water for the primary 
purpose of providing water to one or more governmentally owned public drinking water 
systems. This excludes the multipurpose reservoirs owned by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers. 
 
Water Supply Watershed.  The area of land upstream of a governmentally-owned public 
drinking water intake.  
 
Natural Watershed Buffer.  A portion The area of a parcel which shall be set aside to provide 
a separation between the use(s) on the parcel and adjoining parcels or uses or and a stream state 
waters requiring a buffer through the use of natural vegetation, replanting, and supplemental 
plantings.   
 
Watershed Setback.  The area of a parcel where all structures, septic tanks, nitrification 
fields and any impervious surfaces shall be prohibited.  Grading, filling and earthmoving 
shall be minimized within the setback.  
 
Wrested Vegetation.  Wrested vegetation is vegetation that has been disturbed, moved, or 
removed by flowing water creating a clear demarcation between water flow and vegetative 
growth.. 


 
 


Section 8-203. General Provisions 


(a) Purpose and Intent.  It is the propose of this Ordinance is to help ensure the public health, 
safety, environment, and general welfare; to minimize public and private losses due to 
erosion, siltation and water pollution; to preserve stream water quality; and to comply with 
the laws of the Sate of Georgia by provisions designed to: 


1. Create buffers and setbacks along state waters in Fayette County for stream bank 
stabilization, water resource protection, and protection of aquatic and riparian habitat. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 4 - 


2. Minimize land development within such buffers and setbacks by limiting development 
activities within these protected areas and by requiring authorization for any such 
activities.  


(b) Applicability.  The following large and small water supply watersheds, and designated major 
water supply streams, named tributaries, minor unnamed streams, and waters requiring a 
state buffer located in and out of the large and small water supply watersheds shall be 
governed by this Article Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall be applicable to any parcel 
within unincorporated Fayette County that has been created/reconfigured after May 28th, 
1987, unless it is a minor revision to a Recorded Final Plat/Minor Subdivision Plat as 
defined in Article XIII of the Fayette County Developmental Regulations.   


(c) Designation of Ordinance Administrator.  The Stormwater Management Director shall 
administer and implement the provisions of this ordinance.  


(d) Compatibility with Other Regulations.  This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal 
any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other 
provision of law.  The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of 
any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of 
this ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, 
rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or impose 
higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall control. 


(e) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause 
of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, 
paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance. 


(f) Watershed Buffer/Setback Access. Vegetation within a watershed buffer/setback area shall 
not be disturbed except for access and utilities approved by The Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department.   


 
A. Large Water Supply Watersheds:   Fayette County contains one (1) large water supply 


watershed as indicated on the map, Large and Small Water Supply Watersheds in Fayette 
County; the Flint River where intakes for Fayette County, Clayton County and the City of 
Griffin are located. This water supply watershed does not contain a reservoir.    


(g) Small Water Supply Watersheds:  Fayette County contains one (1) large water supply 
watershed and four (4) small water supply watersheds as indicated on the Fayette County 
Watershed Protection Map, Large and Small Water Supply Watersheds in Fayette County.    


 


1. The Flint River is the only large water supply watershed in Fayette County where 
intakes for Fayette County, Clayton County and the City of Griffin are located. This 
water supply watershed does not contain a reservoir.    


2. The four (4) small water supply watersheds are:       


 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 5 - 


a. Line Creek Watershed where Fayette County and Coweta County intakes are 
located.  This water supply watershed is the location of the proposed Lake 
McIntosh (a water supply reservoir); 


 


b. Flat Creek Watershed where a Fayette County intake is located.  Flat Creek is a 
named tributary which that flows into Lake Kedron and then into Lake Peachtree 
(both are water supply reservoirs); 


 


c. Whitewater Creek Watershed where Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville 
intakes are located.  This water supply watershed does not contain a reservoir; and 


d. Horton Creek Watershed where a Fayette County intake is located.  Antioch Creek 
and Woolsey Creek are named tributaries that flow into Lake Horton (a water 
supply reservoir). 


 


C. Designated major water supply streams. 
 


1. Antioch Creek 
 


2. Flat Creek 
 


3. Flint River 
 


4. Horton Creek 
 


5. Line Creek 
 


6. Whitewater Creek 
 


7. Woolsey Creek 
 


 


D. The following named tributaries to water supply streams are as follows: 
 


1. Broadnax Creek 
 


2. Gay Creek 
 


3. Gin Branch 
 


4. Gingercake Creek 
 


5. Haddock Creek 
 


6. Morning Creek 
 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 6 - 


7. Murphy Creek 
 


8. Nash Creek 
 


9. North Camp Creek 
 


10. Pelham Creek 
 


11. Perry Creek 
 


12. Sandy Creek 
 


13. Shoal Creek 
 


14. South Camp Creek 
 


15. Tar Creek 
 


16. Trickum Creek 
 


E. Any and all minor unnamed streams which are indicated as perennial on the 1963 (Photo 
Revised 1982) U.S.G.S. Quad Sheets. 


 
F. State Waters 
 


(h) State Waters Determination. For purposes of this ordinance, the Stormwater Management 
Department shall make state and water determinations, but will not delineate said waters.  
Recorded drainage easements and ditches/swales used for conveying wet-weather flows (i.e., 
no base flow) shall not require a watershed buffer. 


Restrictions. Minumum Watershed Protection Requirements. The following watershed 
buffer and setback requirements  restrictions shall be required apply to Large Water Supply 
Watersheds, Small Water Supply Watersheds and All Areas Outside of the Large and Small 
Water Supply Watersheds all state waters requiring a buffer within unincorporated Fayette 
County.  


No sewage treatment facility, dumping, discharging, releasing, spraying, distributing of any 
toxic or other pollutant is allowed onto the watershed buffer and setback. 


  
Watershed buffer areas may be hand thinned or hand trimmed of vegetation in accordance 
with the Fayette County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance. 


Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural watershed buffer and 
setback.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette County Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, Development Regulations) and Flood Plain 
Regulations (Article IV, Development Regulations). 


The watershed buffer shall only constitute 50 percent of a livestock containment area.  







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 7 - 


The watershed buffer shall only extend for 1,000 feet from the wrested vegetation of state 
waters requiring a buffer. If the watershed buffer exceeds the said 1,000 feet then the 1,000 
feet will become the watershed buffer and a watershed setback will not be applied. 


For (c), (d) and (e) only the natural watershed buffer shall may be reduced to 100 feet as 
measured from the stream bank, for activities that do not require grubbing or tilling, such as 
tree harvesting with no without stump removal, if and only if, a copy of documentation 
submitted to Forestry Commission is submitted to Fayette County Stormwater Management 
prior to requesting a reduction in the watershed buffer.  


 


(a) The following shall apply to any property within 1,000 feet of a reservoir: 
 


1. Permitted residential use: 


 


a. Minimum lot size – Three (3) acres 


a. No multi-family residential or manufactured home park allowed. 


2. Minimum natural watershed buffer 150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation 
or the natural buffer shall be considered the 100-year flood plain base flood elevation, 
whichever is greater. 


 


a. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces - 
150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation or the setback shall be 
considered the 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater . 


 
 


3. Permitted agricultural use: 


 


a. Minimum natural watershed buffer and watershed setback - 150 feet as measured 
from the normal pool elevation or the natural buffer shall be considered the 100-
year flood plain base flood elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum watershed setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation or the setback shall 
be considered the 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


4. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) or livestock allowed in 
the natural watershed buffer. 


 


5. Commercial - no commercial structures or use of any nature. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 8 - 


 


6. Industrial - no industrial structures or use of any nature. 


 


7. Permitted recreational : 


 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation or 
the natural buffer shall be considered the 100-year flood plain  elevation, 
whichever is greater. 


 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces - 
150 feet as measured from the normal pool elevation or the setback shall be 
considered the 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


 


c. Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural buffer and 
setback.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette County Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, Development Regulations) and 
Flood Plain Regulations (Article IV, Development Regulations). 


 


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) allowed in the 
natural buffer. 


 


(b) Other areas within a  reservoir drainage basin including major water supply streams, tributaries, 
and minor streams shall be regulated as follows:  The following shall apply to Antioch Creek, 
Flat Creek, Gin Branch, Haddock Creek, Horton Creek, Line Creek, Trickum Creek, and 
Woolsey Creek located within Lake Horton, Lake Kedron/Lake Peachtree and Line Creek 
Reservoirs watersheds:  


 


1. Permitted residential use: 


 


a. Minimum lot size per zoning district. 


 


b. No multi-family residential or manufactured home park allowed. 


 


c. Minimum natural watershed buffer is100 feet as measured from the stream bank 
wrested vegetation. 


 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 9 - 


d. Minimum watershed setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces is 150 feet as measured from the stream bank buffer. 


 


2. Permitted agricultural use: 


 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank. 


 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces - 
150 feet as measured from the stream bank. 


 


c. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) or livestock 
allowed in the natural buffer. 


 


3. Permitted commercial use: 


a. Minimum lot size – Two (2) acres 


b. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank. 


c. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces - 
150 feet as measured from the stream bank. 


4. Permitted industrial use: 


a. Minimum lot size – Five (5) acres  


b. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank 


c. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces - 
150 feet as measured from the stream bank 


5. Permitted recreational : 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 150 feet as measured from the stream bank 


c. Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural 
buffer and setback.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette 
County Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, 
Development Regulations) and Flood Plain Regulations (Article IV, 
Development Regulations). 


 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 10 - 


(c) If a reservoir is not constructed on or adjacent to a major water supply stream, The 
following shall apply to the Flint River, Whitewater Creek and all state waters 
requiring a watershed buffer within 1,000 feet of a major water supply the above 
named streams: 


 


1. Permitted residential and commercial use: 


a. Minimum Natural watershed Buffer is 400 feet as measured from the stream 
bank wrested vegetation or is 100 feet from the 100-year flood plain base 
flood elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum lot size - residential - per zoning ordinance and commercial: two (2) 
acres.  


c. Minimum watershed setback for all structures, nitrification fields and 
impervious surfaces - 450 feet as measured from the stream bank or 150 feet 
from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater is 50 feet as 
measured from the buffer. 


2. No industrial, multi-family residential, or manufactured home park uses shall be 
permitted. 


3. Permitted agricultural use: 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 400 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 450 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-
year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. The natural buffer shall be reduced to 100 feet as measured from the stream 
bank, for activities that do not require grubbing or tilling, such as tree 
harvesting with no stump removal.  


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) or livestock 
allowed in the natural buffer. 


4. Permitted recreational : 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 400 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 100-year flood plain   elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 450 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-
year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural 
buffer.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette County Erosion 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 11 - 


and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, Development Regulations) 
and the Flood Plain Regulations (Article IV, Development Regulations). 


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) allowed in 
the buffer, natural or undisturbed. 


(d) If a reservoir is not constructed on or adjacent to a major water supply stream, The 
following shall apply to Ginger Cake Creek, Pelham Creek, Perry Creek, South 
Camp Creek, Sandy Creek, Shoal Creek, Tar Creek, and Whitewater Creek within 
the Whitewater Creek Watershed; Gay Creek, Morning Creek, Murphy Creek, North 
Camp Creek, and Nash Creek, within the Flint River Watershed; and all other state 
waters requiring a buffer named within 1000 feet of the above named streams: 


 


1. Permitted residential use: 


a. Minimum lot size per zoning district.  


b. Minimum natural watershed buffer - 200 feet as measured from the stream 
bank  from wrested vegetation or 100 feet from 100-year flood plain base 
flood elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Minimum watershed setback for all structures, nitrification fields and 
impervious surfaces - 250 feet as measured from the stream bank  from 
wrested vegetation or 150 feet from 100-year flood plain base flood elevation, 
whichever is greater. 50 feet as measured from the buffer. 


d. No multi-family residential or manufactured home park  allowed. 


 


2. Permitted commercial use: 


a. Minimum lot size - two (2) acres 


b. Minimum natural buffer - 200 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 1100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces 
- 250 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-year flood 
plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


 


3. Permitted industrial : 


a. Minimum lot size - five (5) acres 


b. Minimum natural buffer - 200 feet   as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 12 - 


c. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surfaces 
- 250 feet  as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-year flood 
plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


4. Permitted agricultural : 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 200 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 250 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-
year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. The natural buffer shall be reduced to 100 feet, as measured from the stream 
bank  for activities that do not require grubbing or tilling, such as tree 
harvesting with no stump removal.   


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) or livestock 
allowed in the natural buffer. 


5. Permitted recreational use: 


 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 200 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 250 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 150 feet from 100-
year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural 
buffer.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette County Erosion 
and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, Development Regulations) 
and Flood Plain Regulations (Article IV, Development Regulations). 


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) allowed in 
the natural buffer. 


 


(e) If a reservoir is not constructed on or adjacent to a major water supply stream, The 
following shall apply to all other minor perennial streams within the Flint River 
Watershed, the Whitewater Creek Watershed and all state waters requiring a buffer 
within 1,000 feet of a these minor perennial streams. 


 


1. Permitted residential, industrial, or commercial use: 


a. Minimum lot size: Residential -  per zoning ordinance; commercial: two - 
two (2) acres; industrial - five (5) acres. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 13 - 


b. Minimum natural watershed buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream 
bank  from wrested vegetation or 50 feet from 100-year flood plain 
elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Minimum watershed setback for all structures, nitrification fields and 
impervious surfaces - 150 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 feet 
from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. is 50 feet as 
measured from the buffer. 


d. No multi-family residential or manufactured home park allowed. 


2. Permitted agricultural use: 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 50 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious surface 
- 150 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 feet from 100-year flood 
plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. The natural buffer shall be reduced to 100 feet as measured from the stream 
bank  for activities that do not require grubbing or tilling, such as tree 
harvesting with no stump removal..  


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) or livestock 
allowed in the natural buffer. 


3. Permitted recreational use: 


a. Minimum natural buffer - 100 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 50 
feet from 100-year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


b. Minimum setback for all structures, nitrification fields and impervious 
surfaces - 150 feet as measured from the stream bank  or 100 feet from 100-
year flood plain elevation, whichever is greater. 


c. Pervious hiking trails and picnic areas will be allowed within the natural 
buffer.  Any land disturbance activities are subject to Fayette County Erosion 
and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Article IX, Development Regulations) 
and the Flood Plain Regulations (Article IV, Development Regulations). 


d. No chemical treatment (herbicides, pesticides, fertilizers, or paint) allowed in 
the natural buffer. 


(f) All state waters requiring a buffer not otherwise protected by Section 208(a)-(e) of 


this ordinance shall meet the following requirements. 
 


1. An undisturbed natural A minimum watershed vegetative buffer shall be 
maintained for 50 feet  The buffer applies to both sides of the stream bank and 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 14 - 


shall be measured horizontally from the top of the stream bank from wrested 
vegetation measured horizontally from both side of the stream.   


2. A watershed setback shall be maintained for the 75 feet is 25 feet as measured 
from the buffer. in which all impervious cover shall be prohibited, and grading, 
filling, and earthmoving shall be minimized.  The setback applies to both sides of 
the stream and shall be measured horizontally from the top of the stream bank . 


3.  No septic tanks or septic tank drain fields shall be permitted within the buffer or 
setback.  


4. This section of the ordinance shall not apply to the following activities: 


a. Agricultural operation as defined in Section 8-243(5) of Fayette County’s 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and 


b. Forestry land management practices as defines in Section 8-243(6) of 
Fayette County’s Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance. 


(g) The following restrictions shall apply specifically to Large Water Supply Watersheds 
as identified in the ordinance: 


 
New facilities located within seven (7) miles of a water supply intake or 
water supply reservoir, which handle hazardous materials of the types 
listed in Section 312 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 
1976 (excluding underground storage tanks) in amounts of 10,000 
pounds on any one (1) day or more, shall perform their operations on 
impervious surfaces and in conformance with any applicable federal spill 
prevention requirements or requirements of the Standard Fire Code.  and 
amounts determined by the Department of Natural Resources, shall 
perform their operations on impermeable surfaces having spill and 
leak collection systems as prescribed by the Department of Natural 
Resources.   


(h) The following restrictions shall apply specifically to Small Water Supply Watersheds 
as identified in the ordinance: 


 


1. New facilities located within seven (7) miles of a water supply intake or water 
supply reservoir, which handle hazardous materials of the types listed in Section 
312 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (excluding 
underground storage tanks) in amounts of 10,000 pounds on any one (1) day or 
more, shall perform their operations on impervious surfaces and in conformance 
with any applicable federal spill prevention requirements or requirements of the 
Standard Fire Code. and amounts determined by the Department of Natural 
Resources, shall perform their operations on impermeable surface having spill 
and leak collection systems as prescribed by the Department of Natural 
Resources.   


 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 15 - 


2. New landfills must be lined with a synthetic material and have a leachate 
collection system. 


3. The impervious surface area, including all public and private structures, utilities, 
or facilities, of the entire water supply watershed shall be limited to 25% percent, 
or existing use, whichever is greater. 


4. New hazardous waste treatment or disposal facilities are prohibited. 


Section 8-204. Other Water Quality Considerations. 


(a) Owner Responsibility. It shall be the responsibility of every owner, developer or 
builder to present required plans and to comply with Article IX. 


(b) Conflicting Requirements. Whenever the zoning district regulations, including lot size 
requirements, are more restrictive than those contained in this Article, the more 
restrictive provisions shall prevail. 


(c) Nonresidential Requirements. Nonresidential developments may be required to 
install any or all of, but not limited to, the following devices: 


1. Oil-water separators 


2. Grease traps 


3. Pre-settling basins 


 


(d) No agricultural or recreational activity that does not strictly comply with Georgia 
Pesticide Act of 1976, Georgia Pesticide Use and Application Act of 1976, and Georgia 
Laws 1982, House Bill 1780 (O.C.G.A. Section 2-1-4) as amended, or with any and all 
other laws of the State of Georgia, will be allowed. 


Section 8-205. Natural Watershed Buffer Protection and Replacement.  Vegetation within a 
natural watershed buffer, as defined in this Ordinance, shall not be disturbed except as 
indicated herein.  Where a natural watershed buffer area is otherwise disturbed, it shall 
be replanted according to this Article Ordinance. 


 


(a) Landscape Watershed Buffer Replacement Plan Requirements.  A landscape 


Watershed Buffer Replacement Plan is required for the replacement/replanting of 


natural vegetation: 
 


1. A landscape plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect registered in the 
State of Georgia. 


2. A landscape plan shall include two (2) canopy trees with a minimum trunk 
caliper of two and one half (2 ½) inches (at four [4] six [6] inches from the 
ground) for every 1,000 square feet of disturbed buffer area on the site. 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 16 - 


3. A landscape plan shall include one (1) understory tree with a minimum trunk 
caliper on one (1) inch (at four [4] six [6] inches from the ground) for every 
1,000 square feet of disturbed buffer area on the site. 


4. Required trees shall be randomly places so that the mature canopy covers the 
buffer area.  


5. All disturbed buffer areas shall be 100 percent covered with deciduous trees, 
shrubs, and/or ground cover (not requiring mowing). 


(b) Landscape Watershed Buffer Replacement Plan Check Sheet.  A Landscape 


Watershed Buffer Replacement plan shall contain the following information: 


 


1. Name, address and telephone number of property owner. 


2. Name, address, telephone number and seal of landscape architect who prepared 
the plan. 


3. Site location map, north point, scale of drawings. 


4. Show all pertinent site features:  buildings, walks, drives, underground utilities, 
water bodies, etc. 


5. Show all property lines, distances to bodies of water and/or streams, and the 
limits of the natural buffer areas. 


6. Show calculations on the plan for:  total area, buffer area disturbed (in inches and 
square feet).  Indicate numbers of canopy and understory trees required by 
ordinance. 


7. Planting key:  botanical and common name of all plant materials proposed; 
quantity of each species, size of plant material (caliper, height, width); condition 
(i.e. balled and burlapped, container grown, bare root, collected, etc.); 


8. Submit three (3) copies of plans for review.  One (1) will be returned upon 
approval. 


Section 8-206. Variance Procedures  The following variance and appeals procedures shall 
apply to an owner/operator or developer who has been denied a permit for a development 
activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit because it is clear that 
the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with the provisions of this 
ordinance. A request for a variance may be submitted by an owner/operator who has been 
denied a permit by the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department or by an 
owner/operator or developer who has not previously applied for a permit for the reasons 
stated herein above. 


 
Variances will be considered only in the following cases: 


a. When a property's shape, topography or other physical conditions prevents 
land development unless a buffer/setback variance is granted.   







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 17 - 


b. Unusual circumstances, that when strict adherence to the minimal 
buffer/setback requirements in the ordinance would create an extreme 
hardship. 


 
 (1) Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted to 


the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department.  All such requests shall be 
heard and decided in accordance with plan review procedures established by the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Department.  At a minimum, such 
procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.  


 
(2) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette 
County Planning Commission as established by Fayette County in accordance with 
procedures issued by the Fayette County Planning Commission.  At a minimum, such 
procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard. 


 
(3)   Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Planning Commission may 


appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of 
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.  


 
(5)   Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a functionally 


dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no reasonable alternative 
exists, and the development is protected by methods that minimize buffer disturbances.  


 
(7)   In reviewing such requests, the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department 


and Fayette County Planning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, 
relevant factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.  


 
(8)  Conditions for Variances:  
 


(a) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:  
 
(i) a finding of good and sufficient cause; and  
 
(ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 


exceptional hardship.  
 


(c) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice 
specifying the difference between the current buffer(s) and setback(s) 
requirements and the buffer(s) and setback(s) allowed by the variance. 


 
(d) The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall maintain the 


records of all appeal actions. 
  
(9) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the 


request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County Planning Commission shall 
deem necessary to the consideration of the request. 


 
(10) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this Ordinance, 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and the Fayette County 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 18 - 


Planning Commission may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they 
deem necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this Ordinance.  


 
(11) Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.” 
 
(12) At a minimum, a variance request shall include the following information: 


 
a. A site map that includes locations of all streams, wetlands, floodplain 


boundaries and other natural features, as determined by field survey; 
b. A description of the shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other 


physical characteristics of the property; 
c. A detailed site plan that shows the locations of all existing and proposed 


structures and other impervious cover, the limits of all existing and proposed 
land disturbance, both inside and outside the buffer and setback.  The exact 
area of the buffer to be affected shall be accurately and clearly indicated; 


d. Documentation of unusual hardship should the buffer be maintained; 
e. At least one alternative plan, which does not include a buffer or setback 


intrusion, or an explanation of why such a site plan is not possible; 
f. A calculation of the total area and length of the proposed intrusion; 
g. A stormwater management site plan, if applicable; and, 
h. Proposed mitigation, for the intrusion.  If mitigation is not proposed, the 


request must explain why. 
 
(13) The following factors will be considered in determining whether to issue a variance: 


 
a. The shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other physical 


characteristics of the property; 
b. The locations of all streams on the property, including along property 


boundaries; 
c. The location and extent of the proposed buffer or setback intrusion; and, 
d. Whether alternative designs are possible which require less intrusion or no 


intrusion; 
e. The long-term and construction water-quality impacts of the proposed 


variance; and, 
f. Whether issuance of the variance is at least as protective of natural resources 


and the environment. 
 


Section 8-207. PENALTIES  
 
In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been completed 
by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of the 
following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice 
of violation was directed.   Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 
following penalties, the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall first notify 
the owner/operator or other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall 
provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the 
violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice 
shall be sufficient) to cure such violation.  In the event the owner/operator or other responsible 
person fails to cure such violation after such notice and cure period, the Fayette County 







11/12/2010 10:00:19 AM - 19 - 


Stormwater Management Department may take any one or more of the following actions or 
impose any one or more of the following penalties. 
 
(1) Stop Work Order -The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may issue 


a stop work order which shall be served on the owner/operator or other responsible 
person.  The stop work order shall remain in effect until the owner/operator or other 
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation 
or has otherwise cured the violation or violations described therein, provided the stop 
work order may be withdrawn or modified to enable the owner/operator or other 
responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such violation or 
violations.  


 
(2) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Department may suspend, revoke or modify any permit authorizing any 
development on the project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be 
reinstated after the owner/operator or other responsible person has taken the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations 
described therein, provided such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may deem necessary) to enable 
the owner/operator or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial 
measures to cure such violations. 


 
(3) Civil Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance or in the 


event the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations 
described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event 
the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 
hours notice shall be sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department may impose a penalty not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the severity of 
the violation) for each day the violation is not remediated after receipt of the notice of 
violation. 


 
(4) Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the 


event the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations 
described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event 
the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 
hours notice shall be sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department may issue a citation to the owner/operator or other responsible person, 
requiring such person to appear in Fayette County State Court to answer charges for 
such violation.  Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed 
$2,500.00 per day, per violation or a sentence of imprisonment for 60 days or both.  
Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall 
constitute a separate offense. 





		Stormwater- Revisions to Code Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Revisions to Code Backup

		Microsoft Word - Article 7 - Watershed Protection Ord-2010-09-Part 1.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Article 7 - Watershed Protection Proposed Changes- Part 2 








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Request to extend Bid #694, Printing and Mailing Service for twelve additional months. The successful bidder Dove Mailing, Inc. has 


agreed to hold the prices firm from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011. The current agreement expires December 31, 2010.


Historically, nearly all of the employees in the Tax Assessors' Office spend several weeks at a time (on an annual basis) printing, folding , 


stuffing, placing postage on and mailing all Personal Property Return forms and Assessment Notices. By outsourcing this function, it will 


allow our department to continue to appraise, audit and research property values without having to virtually stop the normal work-process 


to generate and mail the Returns and Notices.  This will ultimately save the county money when the following are considered: Salaries of 


up to 10 full-time employees for no less than 80 hours, cost of ink, paper, envelopes; wear and tear on printers, copiers, postage 


machine, folding/stuffing machine and electricity.


The approval to extend the current printing and binding contract with Dove Mailing until December 31, 2011 at the same rates that were 


applied for 2010.


Depending on the volume of Returns and Notices to be printed and mailed, the cost is not anticipated to exceed $27,000 - which has 


been approved for FY 2011 budget.


Yes Thursday, December 10, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010





























		Tax Assessors- Bid #694 Print...ng Service Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessors- Bid #694 Printing and Mailing Service Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of staff's recommendation for the disposition of tax refund requests submitted by taxpayers in accordance with O.C.G.A. 


48-5-380.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is forwarded to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to 


be reviewed in detail. After the evaluation of the request, a recommendation for the disposition of each request is then forwarded to the 


Board of Commissioners for their final action.


Approval of recommendations regarding requests from taxpayers for refunds, as submitted by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010





		Tax Assessors- Tax Refunds Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessors- Tax Refunds Backup










Minutes
Board of Commissioners


October 28, 2010
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, October 28, 2010, at 
7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to Order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation
Commissioner Frady led the Pledge of Allegiance.


RECOGNITION OF COMMISSIONER FRADY’S 80  BIRTHDAY:TH


Chairman Smith congratulated Commissioner Frady on celebrating his 80  birthday and the Board presented him withth


a cake.  He also remarked that Commissioner Frady was the longest serving Commissioner in Fayette County history.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
A. PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE FAYETTE COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE


“FIND IT IN FAYETTE FOR THE HOLIDAYS” INITIATIVE:


Chairman Smith read and the Board presented Connie Sewell representing the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce
with a Resolution supporting the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce “Find It In Fayette for the Holidays”.  A copy



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 2


of the request and Resolution, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:
B.        CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. RP-048-10, SELAF HADDONSTONE HOLDING COMPANY, LLC,


OWNER, AND JASON WINGFIELD, AGENT, REQUESTING A REVISION TO A RECORDED FINAL
SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR HADDONSTONE SUBDIVISION TO SUBDIVIDE THE AMENITY AREA INTO TWO
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING LOTS WHICH WILL ADD ONE SINGLE-FAMILY LOT TO THE SUBDIVISION.
THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 35 OF THE 5  DISTRICT, FRONTS ON LOGGIA POINT, ANDTH


IS ZONED R-50. THE PLANNING COMMISSION UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDED APPROVAL.  STAFF
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules for public hearings for rezoning matters.  A copy of the
statement, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


At this time, Chairman Smith remarked that he had failed to recognize a boy scout present in the audience who was
working on his communications badge.  He thanked the scout for being present and working on his advancement toward
Eagle Scout.  


Chairman Smith asked if the agent or the petitioner for this rezoning petition was present.  


Agent for the Petitioner Jason Wingfield asked for the Board’s consideration to approve the request for a revision to a
recorded final subdivision plat for Haddonstone Subdivision.  He noted the amenity package would change and would
include a pavilion, pool, two restrooms, a children’s play park and open lawn area but there would be no tennis courts.
He pointed out that petitioner was asking to move the amenity area to the front location of the subdivision as indicated
and take the 2.3 existing acres in the rear of the property and subdivide that essentially adding one lot to the overall
count of the neighborhood  


Chairman Smith asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to
speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Petition No. RP-048-10 as presented with the noted changes in the
amenity package.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, backup
and letter to petitioner, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


C. CONSIDERATION OF PETITION NO. 1220-10, ROSEMARY WURSTER AS TRUSTEE OF THE MAW
FAMILY TRUST ,OWNER, AND DAVID BARBER, AGENT, TO REZONE 2.40 ACRES FROM C-H TO M-1
TO DEVELOP AN OFFICE/WAREHOUSE/AUTO RECOVERY AND IMPOUNDMENT FACILITY.  THIS
PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 217 OF THE 5  DISTRICT AND FRONTS ON WALTER WAY. THETH


PLANNING COMMISSION UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDED APPROVAL.  STAFF RECOMMENDED
APPROVAL:


Chairman Smith asked if the agent or the petitioner was present.  


Agent for the Petitioner David Barber asked for the Board’s consideration to approve the request to rezone the property
from C-H to M-1. He said this would comply with 90% of the rest of the business park which was M-1 zoning.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 3


Chairman Smith asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to
speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Petition No. 1220-10 as presented.  Commissioner Hearn seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  A copy of the Ordinance and Resolution approving Petition No. 1220-10,
identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ETHICS MATTER: 
D. DISCUSSION OF PUNISHMENT IN THE MATTER OF PATRICK J. HINCHEY AND DAVID W. CREE


VERSUS ROBERT E. HORGAN:


Chairman Smith remarked that in May of 2009 there was an incident involving Commissioner Horgan to which Patrick
Hinchey and David Cree filed an Ethics Complaint. He said the Complaint had gone through the process and the Ethics
Panel had rendered a verdict.  He said the verdict was appealed to the Superior Court and a Superior Court Judge had
heard the appeal and denied reversing the judgment of the Ethics Panel.  He said the appropriate period of thirty days
had passed wherein the defendant had an opportunity to appeal the decision to a higher court.  He noted that no appeal
has been filed, therefore the ethics violation becomes final.  He said it was this Board’s responsibility to administer the
punishment phase of the ethics violation.  He stated that the punishment phase was defined within the Ethics Ordinance
of what the Board’s ability was and the means it has for administering punishment.  He said part of that could be a
monetary fine and another part was a determination of whether or not the Board would enter a Resolution of Censure.
He said it was now appropriate for the Board to employ a discussion of how the punishment phase would be handled
since the verdict was now final in this matter.  He said as Chairman he had drafted a Resolution of Censure that he would
pass to the members of the Commission for consideration to vote on a motion to adopt the Resolution.  


Chairman Smith presented the Board with a Resolution of Censure and asked for consideration for each Commissioner
to execute the Resolution.  
                                             
Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to adopt the Resolution of Censure.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.,
discussion followed.


Commissioner Maxwell commented on this incident involving Commissioner Horgan.  He pointed out that Commissioner
Horgan had been the guiding hand on several projects since this ethics ordinance violation occurred and pointed out
that Commissioner Horgan had spear headed the new mental health building and it was through his efforts that this
became a reality.  He said Commissioner Horgan had done a lot of good things for the County and would continue to
do so.  He said he was glad this issue would come to a conclusion tonight.  


Commissioner Frady also commented that he would also support the Resolution of Censure and he felt Commissioner
Horgan was really trying to work through this situation and he hoped he could do that.  


Chairman Smith remarked on several comments that had been directed to this Board for its lack of action.  He said there
was a process that was stated in the Ethics Ordinance as well as in State law and this Board had abided by that process.
He said Commissioner Horgan had always participated in the discussions, brought matters to the Board and based on
his observations always been forthright in his commitment to the County.  He said this did not excuse Commissioner
Horgan’s actions and those actions speak for themselves. He read the Resolution into the record.  He asked for the
Board’s pleasure to vote on the motion on the floor to adopt the Resolution of Censure.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 4


The motion carried 4-0-1 with Commissioner Horgan abstaining.  A copy of the request and the Resolution of Censure,
identified as “Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith remarked that after weighing all of the information regarding a fine, that he recommended a fine should
be levied to recognize that there had been a violation of the ethics ordinance, that all of the costs incurred by
Commissioner Horgan have been in the criminal proceedings and that this board needed to address a monetary fine
on the ethics matter.  He recommended a fine of $200 be levied against Commissioner Horgan and said he would make
a motion for the Board’s consideration.  


Chairman Smith made a motion to impose a fine in the amount of $200 to be levied against Commissioner Robert
Horgan and would bring this ethics violation to a close.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried
4-0-1 with Commissioner Horgan abstaining.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
Bob Ross:  Bob Ross commented on Commissioner Horgan’s ethics violation and said he was glad this matter had
come to a conclusion.  He said he appreciated the attention that each Board member had given this matter and
particularly the comments made by Commissioner Maxwell.  He said he was satisfied with the Resolution and the
monetary fine.  


Pat Hinchey: Pat Hinchey remarked that he was also glad that the ethics violation against Commissioner Horgan was
also over and done.  He said he felt it was his responsibility to file the ethics complaint to do what he felt was the right
thing to do for his family and the reason they had chosen to live in Fayette County.  He said he was glad this chapter
would now be closed and everyone could move on.  He said he and his family would continue to live in a County that
they were proud to live in.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1-7 as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


BUILDING AND GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
1. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to proceed with the replacement of two mowers and two weed


trimmers stolen from the Buildings and Grounds Maintenance Facility using Contingency Funds in an amount
not to exceed $18,000.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT - BID #765 - ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR SPLOST PROJECT NO. FC-15:
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #765 Engineering and Design Services for SPLOST Project


No. FC-15, intersection improvements at Goza Road, Inman Road and S.R. 92 to Wolverton & Associates, in
accordance with the terms and fees provided in the company’s bid dated October 12, 2010.  A copy of the
request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.   


SHERIFF’S OFFICE:
3. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division


by $1,945.89 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 5


WATER SYSTEM - PEACHTREE CITY SEWER CUSTOMERS BILL INSERT:
4. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation that the Water System include an insert in bills to


Peachtree City sewer customers on behalf of the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority announcing
the upcoming increase in sewer rates.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 10",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


COUNCIL OF JUVENILE COURT JUDGES OF GEORGIA:  
5. Approval of staff’s request for authorization for the Chairman to execute documents accepting a grant in the


amount of $7,500 from the Council of Juvenile Court Judges of Georgia for providing community alternatives
to juvenile incarceration.  A copy of the request, backup and executed Grant document, identified as
“Attachment No. 11", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD APPOINTMENTS:
6. Approval of appointments of Jason Thompson, Mike Brady, Hollis Harris and Phil Smelley to the Fayette County


Development Authority which will expire on April 9, 2014.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.
12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES:  
7. Approval of minutes for the October 6  Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting and the October 14  Boardth th


of Commissioners meeting.  


OLD BUSINESS:
E.    FURTHER DISCUSSION RESULTING FROM A PREVIOUS REQUEST FROM STAFF CONCERNING


CURRENT ACCOUNT AND FUND BALANCES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010:


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland discussed this matter with the Board.  A copy of the request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 13", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  She said the Board had discussed
additional funding at the October 14  meeting to be made available from fiscal year 2010.  She said during thatth


discussion, there were certain items that were brought to her attention that the Board wanted additional information and
analysis in regard to other funding needs.  She commented those items were asphalt and tack, victim’s assistance,
worker’s compensation, and vehicle replacement.  She remarked that the additional funding for these four items would
amount to $1,755,000 from the general fund.  She said the Fire Fund would total $392,000, EMS would total $90,000
and the Water System would total $8,000.  She pointed out that this would total $2,245,000.  She said there would be
a $3 million surplus just for the General Fund alone.  She said staff was recommending approval for the additional
funding as presented.           


Commissioner Maxwell questioned the figures regarding the Defined Benefits Plan and after a brief discussion, Ms.
Holland stated staff would be providing the Board with an updated report and representatives from GEBCorp would be
making a presentation to the Board at the November 18  meeting.  th


          
Chairman Smith remarked that during the course of the last four years this Board had made a lot of budget cuts and
during the first three years of this Board actually cut the County budget by $7 million.  He said in addition to that reduced
$7 million budget, another $7 million was actually banked because the County underspent the lower budget.  He said
in addition to what the Board has heard tonight, the County would be in a position that there would be another $3 million
realized.  He said a great deal of this reduction was on the backs of the employees.  He said those employees have not
had cost of living raises, merit raises, pay for performance or any other measure of increase yet they have continued
to do their job and they have done it well.  He said he would like to propose to this Board that 2.5% of salary be set aside







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 6


for the Pay for Performance Program that was implemented approximately three years ago and that 2.5% of
compensation be administered through that program so the performance was rewarded for County employees who he
felt had performed in a manner that was steller.  He said he was recommending this in addition to the allocations that
Ms. Holland had proposed to bring some of the funds back up to the level that they should be at with a portion of thee
funds that have been accumulated over the last four years be allocated as performance pay for County employees.  


Chairman Smith made a motion to approve staff’s recommendations for additional funding in Asphalt & Tack, Victim’s
Assistance, Worker’s Compensation, and Vehicle Replacement and to include 2.5% of compensation be earmarked for
allocation to the Pay for Performance Program.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion, discussion followed.  


Chairman Smith added that the Pay for Performance would be for a half year since the County was already half way
through the budget process. County Administrator Jack Krakeel said if the Board approved an effective date of
December 1, 2010 the total aggregate from all funds would be $579,307 of which the general fund would fund $416,630.
Mr. Krakeel said the maximum amount that any individual employee would be eligible for would be a maximum of 5%.


Commissioner Maxwell commented on the cost of health benefits provided by the County that must be paid by the
employees.  Mr. Krakeel remarked that multiples changes had been made to the healthcare plan over the course of the
last four years including now with employees required to pay annual deductibles.  He pointed out that there had been
a significant increase in costs beyond the recalibration of the premiums being paid by employees.  He said in addition
to the recalibration the employees out of pocket expenses have gone up substantially as a result of plan modification.


Commissioner Frady interjected that the employees were no longer getting the County’s contribution of 4% to their
pension plan and the employees were paying 2.5% for the current pension plan. 


Chairman Smith said he saw no detriment to the County whatsoever in rewarding those employees who have had steller
performance and who have gone above and beyond their duties.  


Commissioner Hearn questioned if employees who had reached the top of their salary range would be eligible for this
pay for performance increase and Mr. Krakeel replied no, they would not.  Commissioner Hearn pointed out that this
would mean that there would be a certain number of employees who would not be eligible at all for any type of increase
because of being “topped out” in their salary range.  


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland interjected that when the U.G.A. Compensation Study was done the actual levels
within each grade were extended and she did not feel there were many employees who had reached their maximum
level.  


Mr. Krakeel remarked if the employees who had reached the maximum level in their pay grade, there was no provision
for increasing that employee’s salary through performance pay.  


Mr. Hearn said during his employment with the County as Public Works Director there were upwards of 30% of the
employees who were “topped out” in their salary range.  He said he was concerned about the employees who would not
be receiving any increase.  He said he would like information regarding out of pocket costs that were required to be paid
by employees.  He also questioned the date of the last cost of living adjustment that County employees received and
Mr. Krakeel replied that was in 2006 and then there was a recalibration of salary grades through the U.G.A. study and
since the implementation of that study there had been no significant increase.  Mr. Hearn noted that the County was
putting more responsibility on the backs of employees by paying a portion of their health insurance and also paying a







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 7


portion of their retirement package.  He said he would like more detailed information on this and Mr. Krakeel said he
would  be glad to provide that.  


Chairman Smith amended the motion to have the 2.5% of annual salary prorated for the balance of this fiscal year
beginning December 1, 2010.  Commissioner Frady seconded the amended motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


NEW BUSINESS:
F.             APPROVAL OF WATER COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION TO HAVE THE COUNTY ENTER INTO AN


AGREEMENT WITH ECO-SOUTH, INC. TO PERFORM MITIGATION WORK FOR THE CAMP CREEK
MITIGATION SITE ON HELMER ROAD AND AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE SAID
AGREEMENT UPON REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY:  


Assistant Water System Director Russell Ray discussed this matter with the Board.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He noted that this was the
last of the four mitigation sites required by the 404 Permit issued by the Corps of Engineers for construction of Lake
McIntosh.  He said the first two sites were complete and the third site was near completion.  He asked for the Board’s
consideration to approve this recommendation.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Water Committee’s recommendation for the County to enter into
an Agreement with Eco-South, Inc. in the amount of $454,798 to perform mitigation work for the Camp Creek Mitigation
Site on Helmer Road and authorize the Chairman to execute said Agreement upon review and approval by the County
Attorney.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Agreement, identified as
“Attachment No. 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
COUNTY OWNED PROPERTY AT FIRST MANASSAS MILE: County Administrator Jack Krakeel updated the Board
on the issue of possible County property at First Manassas Mile being used by the Health Department that was
discussed at the October 14  Board meeting.  He remarked that staff had completed the additional information andth


analysis and provided the Board a copy for review.  He said he would be glad to answer any questions that the Board
might have in regard to that issue.  


VICTIMS OF CRIME ACT ASSISTANCE GRANT:   County Administrator Jack Krakeel stated that District Attorney Scott
Ballard was asking for the Board’s consideration for approval of the Victims of Crime Act Assistance Grant application
and authorize the Chairman to execute the application in the amount of $81,517.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Victims of Crime Act Assistance Grant Application and authorize
the Chairman to execute the Application.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy
of the Grant Application, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
PROPOSAL #P759 - CONTRACT WITH SOUTHEASTERN TENNIS COURTS, INC.: County Attorney Scott Bennett
asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute the contract with Southeastern Tennis Courts,
Inc. who was the low bidder for Proposal #P759 in the amount of $29,880 for the refurbishment of the Kiwanis Park
basketball court.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


October 28, 2010


Page 8


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the contract with Southeastern Tennis
Courts, Inc. in the amount of $29,880.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of
the contract, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


CONTRACT WITH VERTICAL EARTH FOR REPAIRS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL EXERCISE YARD FOR THE
SHERIFF’S OFFICE: County Attorney Scott Bennett asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to
execute the contract with Vertical Earth for repairs to the Fayette County Jail exercise yard in the amount of $89,050.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute a contract with Vertical Earth for repairs to
the Fayette County Jail Exercise Yard for the Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $89,050.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  


STAFF REPORTS:  Public Works Director Phil Mallon announced that Phase I of the West Fayetteville Bypass was open
for traffic today.


BOARD REPORTS: Chairman Smith stated that Chief Magistrate Chuck Floyd had passed away.  He said visitation
would be on Saturday at Mowell Funeral Home in Peachtree City and the funeral service would be held on Sunday at
2:30 p.m. at Dogwood Church on S.R. 74 in Peachtree City.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION: Chairman Smith requested an Executive Session to discuss a personnel matter.


Commissioner Maxwell requested an Executive Session to discuss a personnel matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel matters.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Chairman Smith adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened the meeting to open session.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that
a personnel matter was discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried
5-0.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT: Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting at
10:20 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 18  day of November, 2010.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


November 3, 2010
7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday November 3, 2010,
at 3:30  p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall
Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Commissioner Absent: Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
____________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order by Chairman.


Chairman Smith called the November 3, 2010 Board of Commissioner’s Workshop Meeting to Order at 3:40 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the agenda as published.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0.


OLD BUSINESS:


A. Continued discussion of revisions to the Ethics Ordinance.


County Attorney Scott Bennett reminded the Board that during the October, 2010 Workshop Meeting, the Board
questioned how to constitute the proposed Ethics Board.  He reported that he had spoken to County
Administrator Jack Krakeel and was recommended that the Ethics Board be made of three Fayette County
citizens who are appointed by the Board of Commissioners by a majority vote.  He explained that each member
of the Ethics Board would serve a staggered three-year term, meaning one initial member would serve one







Minutes
November 3, 2010 
Page Number 2


year, another initial member would serve two years, and the third initial member would serve three years.  He
suggested that finding people to serve on the Ethics Board would not be very problematic because the Board
is designed only to convene when a complaint is filed.  He continued that the revisions add that if any member
of the Ethics Board has a conflict of interest or a problem serving when there is a complaint filed, the other two
members would select a replacement.  The Board noticed wordings in the revisions that needed clarification,
and asked the County Attorney to make those clarifications.  Discussion followed after which the Board directed
the County Attorney to make revisions and place the revised draft Ethics Ordinance on the November 18, 2010
Agenda.  A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


B. Review of a request from the City of Fayetteville related to the intersection of Hood Road and State
Route 92 at State Route 85.


The Board listened to a presentation from City of Fayetteville Engineer Don Easterbrook and from Mr. John
Walker of Kimley-Horn and Associates pertaining to two available intersection improvement options for Hood
Road and State Route 92 at State Route 85. 


 Mr. Walker reported that a preliminary design and cost estimate was done on the first option presented, and
that the estimated cost is approximately $9.6 million.  He explained that cost would include the parcels that
would need to be acquired and the buildings that would need to be demolished and turned into right-of-way.
He told the Board that the $9.6 million cost was basically comprised of  $4.4 million for construction cost and
$4.5 million for right-of-way acquisition and associated fees.  Mr. Walker explained that the Georgia Department
of Transportation (GDOT) has indicated they may be able to find some funds, possibly about $600,000, for the
largest round-about as discussed in Option 1.  He also mentioned the availability of grant funding from various
programs to assist in this project, and those grants could be approximately $425,000.  He continued that ,based
on initial conversations with the County, the County would utilize 2004 SPLOST 70% Funds for construction
and right-of-way acquisition in the amount of approximately $7.8 million, and that the City of Fayetteville would
be responsible for the remainder of the cost.  He added that a cost estimate of the second option had not been
calculated.  Mayor Kenneth Steele of the City of Fayetteville, who was in attendance, informed the Board that
the City of Fayetteville preferred the first option.  It was emphasized that this construction project is an identified
project in the 2003 Traffic Study and is known as “Hood - 92 Realignment”.


The Board discussed the City’s findings and possible alternatives, but took no action and gave no direction.
A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


C. Discussion of staff’s recommendations that the County adopt Policy No. 100.11 which provides
guidelines for the use of county property.


Executive Assistant Carol Chandler presented a draft of Policy Number 100.11 to the Board, and requested
authorization to place the policy on the November 18, 2010 Agenda for formal approval.  She emphasized that
the policy was a codification of an informal policy that was made by a previous Board in 2005, and that the
practices described in the policy have already been in use since that time.  Discussion followed during which
the Board recommended a minor clarification to the wording of one item of Policy Number 100.11, and directed
that the recommended policy be placed on the November 18, 2010 Consent Agenda.  A copy of this request,
identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 3, 2010 
Page Number 3


D. Consideration of a request from the Extension Office that the County restore funding for a portion of
an Agriculture and Natural Resources Agent’s position.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel began this discussion by  telling the Board that over the past couple of years
the Extension Program in Fayette County, as well as Extension Programs throughout Georgia, have been under
significant scrutiny from a financial perspective by the State of Georgia and the University of Georgia in Athens.
He explained that the University of Georgia has curtailed expenditures and frozen a number of positions within
the Extension Services Department, including that of an Agriculture and Natural Resources Agent position after
it became vacant.  He added that the position has not been filled for over two years.  He continued that recently,
as a result of the reorganization of the Extension Services office under the University of Georgia’s system,
Fayette County was identified as an entity that may be eligible for funding for an Agriculture and Natural
Resource Agent position.  The cost to Fayette County for this position for a full year would be $17,500, which
is 20% of salary and benefits.  Mr. Krakeel mentioned that another important element for consideration during
this discussion pertains to the Stormwater Management Program and to the Water System, specifically, there
are credits that Fayette County receives for education related to those two programs, and this position would
help to assist in the delivery of that education which then avails the County to those credits.


The Board discussed this request with the County Coordinator for the Fayette County Extension Service, Craig
Gross, and directed that this request be placed on the November 18, 2010 Consent  Agenda.  A copy of this
request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


E. Consideration of revisions to Fayette County Development Regulations Article V and VII.


Stormwater Management Director Vanessa Birrell, Environmental Program Engineer Bryan Keller, and
Environmental Technician Nancy Howard discussed the recommended revisions to the Fayette County
Development Regulations with the Board.  County Attorney Scott Bennett spoke of concerns related to the
penalties and authority given to the Stormwater Department as written in the proposed ordinance, particularly
how they relate to the issuance of a structure’s Certificate of Occupancy which is governed by the Building
Code.


The Board directed Stormwater Management staff to meet with the County Attorney, to find language that would
address the Attorney’s concerns, and to place the revised proposed ordinance on the  November 18, 2010
Agenda.  A copy of this request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


REPORT:


F. Presentation of the monthly update on the County’s 2010 Transportation Work Plan by Public Works
Director Phil Mallon.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon gave his monthly update on the County’s 2010 Transportation Work Plan to
the Board.  The Board took no action and gave no direction on the report.  A copy of this request, identified as
“Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 3, 2010 
Page Number 4


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


Addendum to the Unified Stormwater Utility’s Memorandums of Understanding: County Administrator Jack Krakeel
reminded the Board that during its October 14, 2010 meeting it authorized staff to proceed in engaging Integrated
Science and Engineering for developing Task 2A and Task 2B, which consists of the delineation of impervious surfaces
for each parcel.  He also reminded the Board that the Unified Stormwater Utility project was first started with an initial
feasibility study, which was made possible through  Memorandums of Agreement between the County and the towns
of Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey.  Mr. Krakeel informed the Board that, now that the County is at the point of delineating
parcels within each jurisdiction of which there is an identifying cost,  staff had drafted an addendum to the original
Memorandums of Agreement due to the recognition that the municipalities may or may not  opt to be a part of a Unified
Stormwater Utility.  He explained that this addendum is intended to recover the cost associated with parcel delineation
within those individual jurisdictions. He closed by informing the Board that he was prepared to submit the addendum to
the various municipalities and then to return to the Board at an appropriate time.  The Board directed that the addendum
be modified to make cost recovery from the municipalities only be contingent upon them not participating in the Unified
Stormwater Utility. 


Consideration of Performance Pay for End-of-Scale Employees: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reminded the
Board that at the October 28, 2010 Board of Commissioners meeting, Commissioner Hearn requested specific
information concerning County employees who had reached the end of their payment scale.  He told the Board that he
had the information available and provided it to the Board.  Discussion followed.  The Board decided to take no action
or give direction on the provided information.  Chairman Smith said he wanted an opportunity to discuss the matter with
Vice-Chairman Frady, and he thought he could do that prior to the November 18th meeting.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


There was no Attorney’s Report.


STAFF REPORTS


There were no Staff Reports.


BOARD REPORTS


There were no Board Reports.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


There was no Executive Session.







Minutes
November 3, 2010 
Page Number 5


ADJOURNMENT


Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting at 6:15 p.m.


__________________________________                                                                               
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk Jack R. Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 18th day of November, 2010.


___________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
November 18, 2010


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Ricardo Antonio “Ricky” Rojas.


B. Presentation of a Resolution for the Month of November, 2010 as
Retired Educators Month in Fayette County.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Policy No. 100.11 which
provides guidelines for the use of county property.


2. Approval of a request from the Extension Office that the County restore
its 20% portion of funding for an Agriculture and Natural Resources
Agents position, in an annual amount not to exceed $17,600, with the
allocation commencing with the six-month remainder of Fiscal Year
2011, which begins on January 1, 2011.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the disposition of tax refund
requests submitted by taxpayers in accordance with O.C.G.A. 48-5-
380.


4. Approval of staff’s request to extend Bid #694, Printing and Mailing
Service for twelve additional months.  The successful bidder, Dove
Mailing, Inc., has agreed to hold the prices firm from January 1, 2011
through December 31,2011.  The current agreement expires December
31, 2010.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to trade 32 turnout coats and 40
pairs of turnout pants that are no longer useable to Glove’s Inc., for a
credit of $1,800 towards the County’s on-current turnout cleaning cost.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
November 18, 2010
Page Number 2


6. Authorization to sign tag paperwork for and to accept receipt of any obligated monies for fuel and
maintenance of one (1) vehicle that was purchased by the US Marshals Service for the Fayette
County Sheriff’s Office.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s
Office Criminal Investigations Division by $5,546.74 for reimbursement for employees assigned to
work with various Federal Agencies.


8. Approval of the Board of Commissioners October 28, 2010 Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


C. Steve Vaughn with GEBCorp will present a second valuation report to the Board concerning the
County’s Defined Benefit Retirement Plan.


D. Further consideration of a revised Fayette County Ethics Ordinance.


E. Consideration of adoption of Ordinance 2010-09, proposed amendments to Fayette County Code,
Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Articles V and VII.


F. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group,
Inc. to conduct post-closure environmental monitoring and compliance activities, and to allow an
$11,000 Fiscal Year 2011 budget adjustment to recognize an increase in the revenue and expenditure
accounts for Solid Waste hosting fees.


NEW BUSINESS:


G. Approval of Board of Commissioners November 3, 2010 Workshop Minutes.  Commissioner Frady was
not present for this Workshop Meeting.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Commissioners Jack Smith


Recognition of Eagle Scout Ricardo Antonio Rojas.


On June 8, 2010, Ricardo "Ricky" Antonio Rojas was awarded the rank of "Eagle Scout".  The Eagle Scout rank is the highest rank 


possible in Boy Scouting and is yearned for by many scouts around the nation.  Only 4% of all scouts attain this rank. 


 


Although 16 years old, he has already earned 42 merit badges, served in several positions in Troop 172 such as Senior Patrol Leader, 


Patrol Leader, Quartermaster, and Chaplain's Aide.  Even as a Cub Scout, Ricky demonstrated the ability to excel by earning the Cub 


Scout's highest rank-- the Arrow of Light.  He has also been awarded the "Super Achiever" award for earning all of the Weblo's Scout's 


activity pins, as well as three religious awards. 


 


As part of his Eagle Scout project, Ricky organized a county-wide food and clothing drive on August 15, 2009 with beneficiaries including 


the Real Life Center and Fayette Samaritans.  He not only met and exceeded goal to collect 10,000 items, but his efforts (along with the 


efforts of eight other Boy Scouts) helped him raise over $3,700 in donations.


Recognition of Ricardo "Ricky" Antonio Rojas.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, November 18, 2010







RICARDO ANTONIO ROJAS 
EAGLE SCOUT 


 
Ricardo Antonio Rojas has recently been honored by earning the award of “Eagle Scout” 
on June 8, 2010.  The Eagle Scout rank is the Boy Scout organization’s highest award, 
and is revered by many young men.  Many scouts go through the Boy Scout program; 
however, only four percent of all scouts attain this award. 
 
Ricky, 16, is a Junior at McIntosh High School and will be formally recognized by his 
Troop later in the year.  His scouting career began as a Tiger Cub Scout in First Grade in 
2000, and he has been in the scouting ranks ever since.  During his tenure as Cub Scout 
through Weblos Scout, Ricky has earned ranks as a Tiger Cub, Bobcat, Wolf, Weblos I 
and Weblos II, and Arrow of Light, Cub Scouting’s highest rank.  He was awarded the 
“Super Achiever” award for earning all 20 of the Weblo Scout’s activity pins.  In 
addition, he earned three religious awards while being a member of Cub Scouts. 
 
To earn the prestigious Eagle Scout rank, a Scout must earn a minimum of 21 merit 
badges, serve in positions of Troop leadership, and complete a major service project.  To 
date, Ricky has earned 42 merit badges; served in several positions of leadership in the 
Troop, such as Senior Patrol Leader, Patrol Leader, Quartermaster and Chaplain’s Aide.  
He continues to be a leader and inspiration for the younger scouts in the Troop, and is 
well respected by his peers in his current role as Troop Guide.   
 
In addition, he has completed the National Youth Leadership Training course, and is a 
member of the Order of the Arrow, scouting’s honor society. He has earned the “Mile 
Swim” Award;   Historic Trails Award, Paul Bunyan Woodsman Award and World 
Conservation Award.  Ricky is a Boy Scout Lifeguard, and since earning these skills, has 
taken this a step further to become a certified Red Cross Lifeguard.  Ricky helps other 
scouts in his Troop by being the “swim test” guru, and is a great help for them as they 
prepare for summer camp. 
 
For his Eagle Project, Ricky organized and coordinated a county-wide food and clothing 
drive on August 15, 2009.  The beneficiaries included the Real Life Center and Fayette 
Samaritans, two non-profit agencies providing relief for the less fortunate families in 
Fayette County.  The collection was held at five Fayette County stores in Fayetteville and 
Peachtree City.  The goal of the drive was to collect over 10,000 items.  He achieved his 
goal, and included in the collection were donations of over $3,700.   Ricky’s workforce 
involved eight Boy Scout troops in the county and over 100 volunteers during this one-
day event.  As a thank you, each volunteer received a unique, one of a kind patch; 
certificate; bottled water and snack items, and a coupon for a Chick-fil-A sandwich which 
were graciously donated by Publix Supermarkets, the Chick-fil-A Town Center and 
Chick-fil-A Dwarf-House Restaurant in Fayetteville.   Most importantly, each volunteer 
earned service hours, and the number of service hours for the project totaled 
approximately 780 hours.                 . 
 
Thank you for your acknowledgement, and in wishing Ricky good luck, and bestowing 
congratulations on his successful Scouting career.  







November 18, 2010


Eagle Scout Richardo Antonio Rojas


185 Felton Drive


Fayetteville, Georgia 30214


Dear Mr. Rojas,


As elected officials, we are pleased to learn of your ascension to the honorable rank of Eagle


Scout.  This accomplishment represents years of energy and effort devoted to learning and serving others. 


We are certain your family and friends who have helped you and encouraged you over the years are very


proud of you–as they should be.


In our world today, it seems increasingly difficult to find young men and women who are eager or


willing to work toward achieving a goal, especially one as noble as reaching Eagle Scout status.  The


principles of character we build as young people remain with us always and are the foundation upon which


we build a lifetime of good judgment, decision-making skills, and moral and ethical behavior.  Not


surprisingly, we often learn that some of our country’s finest leaders were involved in Boy Scouts as


youngsters.  Perhaps the future holds an important leadership role for you as well.


On behalf of the citizens of Fayette County, we extend to you our heartiest congratulations and


wish you continued success as you set an example for others.  If any member of the Board of


Commissioners can ever assist you in any way, I hope you will call on us.


With warmest regards and best wishes, we are


THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


______________________________


Jack R. Smith, Chairman


______________________________ ______________________________


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman Robert Horgan, Commissioner


______________________________ ______________________________


Lee Hearn, Commissioner Eric Maxwell, Commissioner





		Commissioners- Eagle Scout Rojas Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Eagle Scout Rojas Backup

		Eagle Scout Backup-1.pdf

		Eagle Scout Backup-2








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Jack Smith


Presentation of a Resolution for the Month of November, 2010 as Retired Educators Month in Fayette County.


For over 52 years, the Georgia Retired Educator's Association has been dedicated to improving the welfare to retired educators and in 


part has provided opportunities for them to become involved in community activities.  Currently, there are over 86,000 retired educators in 


the State of Georgia, and the influence they have had over all their collective years and in multitudes of students is incalculable.  They 


serve as a wealth of knowledge and experience, and they continue to contribute to various causes of every type across the state and 


throughout our nation.   


 


Members of the Fayette County Retired Educators will be present to receive the Resolution.


Present Resolution.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, November 18, 2010







RESOLUTION
Retired Educators Month in Fayette County


WHEREAS, More than 86,000 educators who devoted their time, energies and talents to Georgia’s


education system, resulting in the academic, social, and cultural betterment of millions of


Georgians, are not retired; and


WHEREAS, During their careers, retired educators touched and influenced the lives of generations of


young people and motivated and inspired them to use their innate talents and abilities to


the fullest and to become responsible and contributing citizens; and


WHEREAS, Retired educators possess valuable knowledge and use their lifetime experiences and


skills to enrich the educational process in a variety of settings.  They often continue to be a


major source of influence in our communities, actively working in civic, religious, and


humanitarian endeavors, or quietly working “behind the scenes” for the benefit of others;


and


WHEREAS, The Fayette County Retired Educators Association dedicates its efforts to improving the


welfare of retired teachers and others, who have spent their careers engaged in the lives of


young people; and


WHEREAS, Almost every American owes a debt of gratitude to teachers in their lives, many having fond


memories of perhaps one special teacher who made a life-changing difference in their lives


or who influenced their career or life choices.  Most likely these teachers dedicated most of


their lives to their teaching careers and many continue to help others even now in


retirement;


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, do hereby proclaim


the Month of November as “Retired Educator’s Month in Fayette County”, and in doing so honor the lives and


careers of the educators in our community.  We call upon our citizens to likewise honor these who have had


such influence and meaning in our lives and the lives of past generations.  We wish them a fulfilling,


rewarding retirement.


So resolved this 18th day of November 2010 by the 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


__________________________


Jack R. Smith, Chairman





		Commissioners- Educator's Resolution Agenda Request File.pdf

		Resolution-Educators






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


County Commissioners Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Further consideration of a revised Fayette County Ethics Ordinance.


At the Board's Workshop on October 6, the County Attorney presented the first draft on a revised Ethics Ordinance for Fayette County.  


Then, on November 3, 2010, the County Attorney again presented a second draft to the Board during the Workshop. 


 


Revising the County's Ethics Ordinance requires an amendment to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances. The document under 


consideration is Ordinance No. 2010-10. 


 


  


Final approval of a new Fayette County Ethics Ordinance.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 3, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 18, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


County Commissioners Carol Chandler


Approval of staff's recommendation that the County adopt Policy No. 100.11 which provides guidelines for the use of county property.


For many years the County has allowed eligible persons, organizations, elected officials, and government entities to use county owned, 


leased, or managed property for special events.  Use of county property is not allowed for commercial.  In 2005, the Board of 


Commissioners adopted specific guidelines to more carefully monitor the use of county property and to more clearly define what would be 


permitted.  Staff was given more clear direction on uses that should be prohibited or limited in order to protect the County's assets. 


 


The policy under consideration puts the long-time practice into a formal policy format.  During the November 3rd Workshop Meeting, the 


Board authorized placing this request on the Consent Agenda.


Approval of Policy No. 100.11 which provides guidelines for the use of county property.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 3, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010







 1 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
            ADMINISTRATION 
                                                 USE OF PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 
 
            100.11 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the use of property and buildings owned, leased or 
managed by Fayette County by eligible persons, agencies, organizations or groups other than the Fayette 
County Government. 
 
POLICY 
 
Fayette County allows limited use of certain properties owned, leased, or managed by Fayette County 
(hereafter called “county property”) by eligible persons, groups, and agencies under certain conditions.  
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for permitting use of Fayette County’s buildings and 
grounds. This policy addresses use of all such properties in general and addresses in particular specific 
locations not addressed in the Fayette County Policy and Procedures Manual or otherwise. 
 
A. Rules Pertaining to the Use of All Property Owned, Leased, or Managed by Fayette County 
 
The following rules shall be applicable to all properties owned, leased or managed by Fayette County: 
 
1. All applicable federal, state, and local laws and ordinances shall be observed at all times on 
 property owned, leased, or managed by Fayette County. In particular, laws regulating noise, 
 lighting, signage, and the opening and closing times for county properties must be 
 observed. 
 
2. Requests for use of county grounds and buildings by other governments shall take priority over 
 other applications. Requests which conflict with use of the property by county departments will 
 not be considered. Activities which are deemed disruptive to the operation of county government 
 will not be allowed. 
 
3. County property shall not be reserved for commercial uses or use by “For-profit” entities. 
 Commercial entities may be invited to participate in activities on county property sponsored 
 and presented by a county department or by another eligible government or “Not-for-profit” 
 entity which has express permission from the county to do so. 
 
4. There shall be no fundraising on county property unless the activity is sponsored by a county 
 department or another eligible government entity which has express permission from the county 
 to do so. 
 
5. The person or organization in whose name the reservation for use of county property has been 
 made shall be the same person or organization responsible for conducting the activity. Applicants 
 must be at least  21 years of age and must be a resident of Fayette County. The applicant shall be 
 held responsible for ensuring that event attendees comply with the County’s terms and conditions, 
 particularly regarding the security and safe-keeping of county property, including buildings, 
 grounds, and structures, interior and exterior. 







 2 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. No smoking is permitted inside any county building or facility and is permitted only in designated 
 smoking areas in accordance with Fayette County Ordinance No. 98-05. 
 
7. No alcohol use will be permitted on county property without the express approval of the Fayette 
 County Board of Commissioners in accordance with Fayette County Ordinance No. 2009-05. 
 
8. The County retains the right to charge a security deposit and/or fees to recover the cost of 
 utilities, supplies, or personnel time required during or after an event. The County also reserves 
 the right to require a waiver of liability and/or a Certificate of Insurance for the purpose of 
 holding Fayette County harmless for injuries or death occurring on county property during an 
 event. 
 
9. County property must be left clean and orderly, including the removal of trash and debris, 
 signage, flyers,  and brochures or other materials used during the event. Failure to leave the 
 county property clean and orderly can result in the denial of future requests. Any security deposit 
 will be forfeited.  
 
10. The County does not provide personnel to assist in the set-up for an event, assistance during an 
 event, or clean-up after an event. The County does not provide supplies, equipment, or other 
 materials needed to conduct an event. 
 
11. No permanent fixture, appurtenance, or apparatus shall be affixed to county property. No action
 that leaves damages or defaces county property, including buildings, paved/concrete surfaces or 
 walls, or permanently alters the appearance or condition of the county property shall be allowed. 
 The County will take necessary appropriate action to recover the cost of repairs to damage to 
 county property. 
 
12. Reservations for the use of county property are granted on a “first come, first served” basis, 
 assuming an application meets the terms and conditions of this Policy and unless otherwise noted. 
 The County reserves the right to withdraw its approval of an event on county property if 
 subsequent information suggests the event is not in the best interest of the community. 
 
13. Political activities on county property.   
 
 a.  Political rallies or campaign activities or gatherings by or on behalf of any current candidate 
 for public office, regardless of elected status or political party, are not permitted on any county 
 property.  
 
 b.  This section is not intended to prohibit sitting elected officials, whether local, state, or federal 
 level, from holding public meetings or hearings, “town hall meetings”, or other informational 
 or educational gatherings on county property for the purpose of disseminating information or 
 soliciting input from constituents concerning current or on-going issues. 
  
 c.  Activities commonly known as “candidate debates” or “political forums” are allowed to be 
 held in the Fayette County Public Library Meeting Room and the Public Meeting Room of 
 the Fayette County Administrative Complex, with certain stipulations. No county department 
 shall propose, sponsor, host, or promote such an event. In order for a request for a reservation for   







 3 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 such an event to be approved, the applicant must agree that all candidates for the positions for 
 which the event is held, regardless of party, incumbency, or lack thereof, shall be invited to 
 participate. 
 
14. Exceptions. Properties operated by the Fayette Senior Services, the Fayette Counseling Center 
 and the Fayette County Water System have specific provisions and exclusions unique to their 
 operation and are not reserved for use under the terms and conditions of this Policy. 
 
 This policy is not intended to replace policies already established governing other Fayette County 
 properties, including the Parks and Recreation Department properties and the Fayette County 
 Public Library. Please refer to the Policy and Procedures Manual for policies related to 
 Recreation Department properties, the Public Library, and filming on county property. 
 
B. Use of Specific Properties Administered by This Policy 
 
1. Requests for use of the following county property are specifically administered by this Policy:   
 
 a. The Public Meeting Room (aka Meeting Chambers) 
 b. Administrative Complex Parking Lot, Lobby, and Restrooms 
 c. The Historic County Courthouse (Grounds) 
 d. Heritage Park 
 
 Conditions for the use of each of these properties vary from site to site. Conditions for each site 
 are described individually below.  
 
2. The Fayette County Justice Center, Jail, and Sheriff’s Offices are not addressed by this policy and 
 are not permitted to be used for purposes other than their designated normal business uses during 
 normal business hours under any circumstances without the express approval of the Board of 
 Commissioners. Requests for use of these specified facilities should be directed to the Board of 
 Commissioners. 
 
PROCEDURE 


 
C. Applications for Use of County Property and Grounds Administered by This Policy 
 
1.   Applications for use of county property administered by this policy may be obtained by 
 contacting the Office of the Board of Commissioners located at 140 Stonewall Avenue West in 
 Fayetteville. A copy of this Policy and an application form will be provided upon request. The 
 applicant must complete and sign the application, indicating agreement with the terms and 
 conditions of this Policy. 
 
2.   Only “Not-for-profit” entities, including local, state, or federal level government entities are 
 eligible to apply for use of county property. The applicant representing the entity must be 21  
 years of age and a resident of Fayette County. A ‘Not-for-profit” entity may be asked to provide 
 proof of “Not-for-profit” status by the Internal Revenue Service. 
 







 4 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
3. Fayette County may require a waiver of liability and/or a Certificate of Insurance 
 Indemnification for the purpose of holding Fayette County harmless for damages, injuries or 
 death occurring on county property during an event. If these documents are not provided when 
 requested, the application will be denied. 
 
4.   The decision to approve or disapprove an application for use of county property, except where 
 otherwise specified, shall be made by the County Clerk, the County Administrator, or their 
 designee. 
 
The following conditions shall be applicable to these certain locations: 
 
a. Public Meeting Room (Meeting Chambers) 
 
 i. The Public Meeting Room is available for use by county departments, officials, and  
  boards, committees or agencies to which the Board of Commissioners appoints members. 
  It is not reserved for use by commercial or “Not-for-profit” entities.  
 
 ii. Other government entities are permitted to use the Public Meeting Room during normal  
  business hours. 
 
 iii. Sitting elected officials, whether local, state, or federal level, are allowed to use the  
  Public Meeting Room for the purpose of  holding public meetings or hearings, “town hall 
  meetings”, or other informational or educational gatherings on county property for the  
  purpose of disseminating information or  soliciting input from constituents concerning  
  current or on-going issues.  
  
 iv.   Activities commonly known as “candidate debates” or “political forums” are allowed to  
  be held in the Public Meeting Room with certain stipulations. In order for a request  
  for a reservation for such an event to be approved, the applicant must agree that all  
  candidates for the positions for which the event is held, regardless of party, incumbency,  
  or lack thereof, shall be invited to participate. 
 
 v. No food or drinks are allowed in the Public Meeting Room. 
 
 vi. Limited audio, visual, and other electronic equipment is available in the Public Meeting  
  Room upon request. Special arrangements must be made in order to use the equipment,  
  including instructions on use and safe-keeping of the equipment. 
    
b. Administrative Complex Lobby and Restrooms 
 
 i. The first floor of the Administrative Complex Lobby and the restrooms located on the  
  first floor may be made available for events held on the Administrative Complex site.  
  
 
 
 







 5 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  Special arrangements to have the Lobby and restrooms open must be made. Restrooms  
  inside office suites cannot be made available during events. If portable restrooms are  
  used by sponsors of an event, the location for the portable restrooms must be approved  
  by the County prior to them being installed. 
 
c. Administrative Complex Parking Lot 
 
 i. The parking lot of the Administrative Complex can be reserved for events that meet the  
  terms and conditions of this policy. While temporary markings are allowed on the  
  parking surface, no permanent paint, holes, or other permanent alterations are allowed.  
  Signs of any kind are not allowed in the parking lot other than on the day of an   
  event or during the set-up for an event. 
 
 ii. From time to time, use of the Administrative Complex may require assistance from the  
  Marshals’ Office for restricting the movement or parking of vehicles to accommodate an  
  event. The Marshals’ Office will work directly with the event sponsor to determine the  
  level and type of assistance needed.  
 
d. Historic County Courthouse (Grounds) 
 
 i. The Historic Fayette County Courthouse is currently under lease and is in use. Requests  
  for events, tours, or visits involving the interior of the structure must be made through the 
  lessor. 
 
 ii. The grounds of the Historic Courthouse are available for special events that comply with  
  the terms and conditions of this Policy and which do not disrupt the business of the  
  lessor. Government entities and “Not-for-profit” entities  can reserve the  grounds under  
  the conditions of this Policy. Commercial entities are not allowed to reserve use of the  
  grounds. However, commercial and “For-profit” entities may be invited to participate in  
  events sponsored by an eligible government or “Not-for-profit” entity. 
 
 iii. Temporary signs announcing upcoming events are allowed to be posted on the northwest  
  corner of the grounds of the Historic Courthouse, provided the signs are posted by an  
  eligible government or “Not-for-profit” entity, as allowed by this Policy. Signs are  
  allowed for a period of 14 days each. Only one sign on the site is allowed at one time.  
  “Not-for-profit entities are limited to two reservations for signs per calendar year.  
 
f. Heritage Park 
 
 i. Heritage Park is a passive facility designed to recognize and honor the history of Fayette  
  County, as well Veterans of our Armed Forces. Reservations for limited use of Heritage  
  Park for special events by eligible government entities and “Not-for-profit” entities will  
  be considered on a case-by case basis, after consultation with the County’s Facilities  
  Manager. Considerations include the nature of the event, use of a stage or other   
  appurtenances, anticipated volume of attendees, potential damage to marble, granite and  
  brick surfaces, turf and other landscaping.  
 







 6 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
    
ENFORCEMENT 


 
The Fayette County Marshal’s Office is responsible for enforcing the terms of this policy.  
 
As all contingencies cannot be anticipated by this Policy, exceptions to this Policy may be considered and 
approved only by the Fayette County Administrator.  Exceptions will not include requests related to the 
Fayette County Justice Center, Jail, or Sheriff’s Office. 
 





		Commissioners- Use of Property Policy Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Use of Property Policy Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Extension Office Craig Gross


Approval of a request from the Extension Office that the County restore its 20% portion of funding for an Agriculture and Natural 


Resources Agent's position, in an annual amount not to exceed $17,600, with the allocation commencing with the six-month remainder of 


FY 2011 which begins on January 1, 2011.


The University of Georgia and Fayette County have been partnering to offer educational programs and services through the Fayette 


County Cooperative Extension Office for several decades. The Extension Office provides Fayette County citizens with current, research-


based materials and programs to help foster safe and informed decisions. Many of the programs not only provide much needed training 


to the public, but they also help the County comply with current storm water management regulations and guidelines. 


The Extension Office typically would have two certified Agents that would provide these educational programs and services. The office 


has been without an Agriculture and Natural Resources Agent since July 2008 due to state and county hiring freezes. 


These economic woes have forced the Georgia Cooperative Extension System to do a thorough review of their programming, staffing 


methods and focus. This intensive process has included input from county, district and state faculty and staff as well as many county 


commissioners, county civic and business leaders and numerous commodity groups. This new effort will allow for each county to have a 


flexible “tiered approach” to providing programs and services based on each county’s needs. 


This process has helped Fayette County to receive “high priority” rating for a Natural Resources Agent. The University regrets that the 


position has been vacant for as long as it has and would like to start recruiting to fill the position. Their goal is to recruit and bring in an 


experienced agent that could start working in the county in as early as January 2011. The 80% balance of funding for this position will be 


paid by UGA. The County will make its payments to UGA, not to the employee.


Approval to fund from contingency the County's 20% portion of salary and benefits for a position in the County Extension Office known as 


an Agriculture and Natural Resources Agent effective January 1, 2011.  The amount requested of $8,790 would be paid to UGA as 


technical services for the remainder of FY 2011.


Funding of $8,790 from contingency is needed for the remainder of the 2011 fiscal year.


Yes Wednesday, November 3, 2010


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010







 


 


Fayette County Extension 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 209 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 


Phone: (770) 305-5412 ext. 5135
Fax: (770) 719-5533


Email: cegross@uga.edu


Friday, November 5, 2010 


The mission of the Fayette County Extension is to provide lifelong learning to the people and to 
respond to people's needs and interest in agriculture and natural resources, families, 4-H and 
youth through education and information, using unbiased, research-based education. 


The Fayette County Cooperative Extension, backed by the resources of Fayette County, the 
University of Georgia, Ft. Valley State University and the Department of Agriculture, provides 
educational programs, information, materials, and actual assistance to the citizens of the county. 
Education and information is also provided to the citizens by telephone consultation, formal 
educational (classroom) programs, school programs, plant clinics, site visits, newsletters, news 
articles, radio and collaboration with other community agencies. Publications, web site and 
laboratory services are other delivery methods for safe - education and information to the county 
citizens. 


The basic goal of the Fayette County Cooperative Extension Office is to provide information that 
will contribute to learning for life, which, in tum, helps citizens make informed decisions with 
unbiased, research-based information - this improving quality of life. We are also Fayette 
County's gateway to the University of Georgia and all the resources associated therein. 


There is no doubt that the recent economic conditions have created strain and departments across 
the country. The State of Georgia and Fayette County is definitely no exception. The Fayette 
County Extension Office has lost one full-time Agriculture and Natural Resources Agent and 
two part-time program assistants because of the hiring freeze that the economic downturn 
caused.  


These economic woes have forced the Georgia Cooperative Extension System to do a thorough 
review of their programming, staffing methods and focus. This intensive process has included 
input from county, district and state faculty and staff as well as many county commissioners, 
county civic and business leaders and numerous commodity groups. Essentially, this new model 
will allow for each county to have a flexible “tiered approach” to providing programs and 
services based on their own county’s needs. Attached you will see a definition of each one of 
these service tiers as well as a map on how the resources are planned for the state. 


This review allowed Fayette County to be given a “high priority” rating for a Natural Resources 
Agent. The University regrets that the position has been vacant for as long as it has and would 
like to start recruiting as early as November 1, 2010 to fill the position. Their goal is to recruit 
and bring in an experienced agent that could start working in the county in early January 2011. 


Sincerely, 


Craig E. Gross 
County Extension Coordinator 







Se
rv
ic
e 
tie


rs


•
Ti
er
 1
 ‐
ba
sic


 4
‐H
 p
ro
gr
am


 d
el
iv
er
ed


 th
ro
ug
h 


sc
ho


ol
 sy


st
em


s.
 N
o 
ph


ys
ic
al
 E
xt
en


sio
n 
of
fic
e.


•
Ti
er
 2
 –
of
fic
e 
w
ith


 o
ne


 e
m
pl
oy
ee
; b


as
ic
 


se
rv
ic
e 
fo
r l
ab


 te
st
s,
 in
fo
rm


at
io
n 
on


 a
va
ila
bl
e 


tr
ai
ni
ng
; a
cc
es
s t
o 
pu


bl
ic
at
io
ns
, o


nl
in
e 


re
so
ur
ce
s;
 c
or
e 
4‐
H 
pr
og
ra
m
s.


•
Ti
er
 3
 –
ad
ds
 to


 se
rv
ic
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
a 
Ti
er
 2
, a
 


sh
ar
ed


 a
ge
nt
 w
ith


 a
 n
ei
gh
bo


rin
g 
co
un


ty
.  







Se
rv
ic
e 
tie


rs


•
Ti
er
 4
 –
ad
ds
 to


 T
ie
r 3


 se
rv
ic
e,
 a
 fu


ll‐
tim


e,
 


co
un


ty
‐b
as
ed


 a
ge
nt
.


•
Ti
er
 5
 –
ad
ds
 to


 T
ie
r 4


, t
w
o 
or
 m


or
e 
ag
en
ts
 


w
ith


 o
ne


 se
rv
in
g 
as
 c
ou


nt
y 
co
or
di
na
to
r.


•
Ti
er
 6
 –
ad
ds
 to


 T
ie
r 5


, a
 fu


ll‐
tim


e 
co
or
di
na
to
r 


w
ith


 m
ul
tip


le
 a
ge
nt
s f
un


de
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
va
rio


us
 


so
ur
ce
s.
 H
as
 p
ro
gr
am


m
in
g 
in
 a
ll 
th
re
e 


pr
og
ra
m
 a
re
as
.











Fayette County Cooperative Extension Office 
Agriculture and Natural Resources 


Program Coverage 
 
The following information was compiled to help highlight the major programs that the 
Agriculture and Natural Resources (ANR) Agent would be coordinating and assisting with. The 
number of participants and programs conducted show that there is an increasing interest and need 
for an ANR Agent. 


 


Water Testing 2010 2009 2008 


 
Basic Water Tests 49 65 42 


 
Water Bacteria Tests 11 10 11 


 
Pond Diagnosis 12 8 14 


 
Water Well Testing 3 6   


TOTAL NUMBERS 75 89 67 


 
2010 numbers are from January 1 to September 30, 2010 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


    


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


80


90


2010 2009 2008


71 89 67


Water Testing







Soil Testing 2010 2009 2008 


 
Soil Nutrient Tests 477 609 488 


 
Soil Nematode Assay Tests 26 2 0 


 
Soil Chemical/Pesticide Testing 2 0 0 


 
Soil Petroleum Tests 2 0 0 


TOTAL NUMBERS 507 611 488 


 
2010 numbers are from January 1 to September 30, 2010 


 


 


     Pests 2010 2009 
 


 
DDDI Submissions 39 24 


 
 


Home or Office Follow Up 379 297 
 


 
Plant Disease ID and Recommendations 143 116 


 
 


Tree Pest ID and Recommendations 94 112 
 


 
Turf Pest ID and Recommendation 36 34 


 TOTAL NUMBERS 691 583 
 


 


 


 
 
 


   


0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700


2010 2009 2008


496 611 488


Soil Testing


500


550


600


650


700


2010 2009


691
583


Pests







Environment/Stormwater Education 2010 2009 2008 


 
Private Pesticide Certification 48 9 2 


 
Youth In School Programs (two programs) + 1273 1453 1110 


 
Youth Home School Programs (two programs) 23 11 0 


 
Adult Education Programs (11 classes) 1417 750 237 


 
In Depth MG Classes (train the trainer) 31 17 3 


 
Plant Clinics 683 347   


TOTAL NUMBERS 3427 2578 1350 


 
+ not all classes have been completed for 2010 


   


Environmental/Stormwater Education 


 
 


Master Gardener Program 2010 2009 2008 


 
Active Master Gardeners 134 121 95 


 
Interns 26 14 10 


 
Plant a Row for the Hungry Harvested     23,025      27,846      10,777  


 
Fruit Distributed to food banks/shelters     62,925  


  
 


Volunteer Hours Worked  **         6,370         6,322  
 Value to the county ** $222,831.99 $195,425.71 


 
** Numbers not yet compiled for 2010 


   In 2009, Fayette County Master Gardeners traveled 33,992 miles in support of education, 
diagnosing pest problems, and other volunteer roles 
 


 


0
500


1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500


2010 2009 2008


3475 2587
1352


Volunteer 
Hours 


P.A.R. 


Miles Driven 


Fayette County Master Gardeners 
“2009 Value to the County” 


$180,000.00 
$190,000.00 
$200,000.00 
$210,000.00 
$220,000.00 
$230,000.00 


2009 2008







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Northwest District Extension  
1109 Experiment St.     
Flynt Bldg., Room 227 
Griffin, GA 30223 
 
 
Dear Mr. Price, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to notify you that we wish to amend our agreement between the 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the Board of Regents of the University System of 
Georgia, on behalf of the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension, for the provision of 
Extension Programs to our County.  The term of this agreement shall be for Fiscal Year 2011 
from July 1, 2010 through June, 2011.  The adjusted annual budget is attached.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 
Fayette County, Georgia 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
County Extension Coordinator       Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
District Extension Director        Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Associate Dean for Extension- CES, UGA      Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Dean & Director of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, UGA   Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Vice-President for Public Service & Outreach, UGA    Date 







Fayette County  
Board of Commissioners 


Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2011 
July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011 


 
ANNUAL SALARY 
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 12,000.00 
Vacant ANR Agent 6,000.00 * 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 13,419.00 
 31,419.00 * 
ANNUAL BENEFITS 
Teacher’s Retirement (10.28%)                                                                
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 1,233.60 
Vacant ANR Agent 616.80 * 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,379.47 
 3,229.87 * 
Social Security (7.65%) 
Craig Gross, CEC 4-H Agent 918.00 
Vacant ANR Agent 459.00 * 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,026.55 
 2,403.55 * 
Health Insurance 
Craig Gross, CEC 4-H Agent 3,403.28 
Vacant ANR Agent 1,701.64 * 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 6,538.46    
 11,643.38 * 
Life Insurance 
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 18.60 
Vacant ANR Agent 9.30 * 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 34.92 
 62.82 * 
 
Yearly Total $ 48,758.62 * 
 
(*) The contract amendment is based upon ½ of the annual commitment for the ANR Agent 
position as the amended budget would not take effect until the second half of the fiscal year. 
 
 UGA will disperse all payroll, tax and insurance payments for employees and will bill 


Fayette County monthly for Fayette County’s actual contribution to total. If a staff member 
chooses not to utilize some of the benefits, the county will not be charged for them. 


 
Please send the bill to the following address: 
Mary Holland Finance Director 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 





		Extension- Resource Agent Agenda Request File.pdf

		Extension- Resource Agent Backup

		AgendaRequestBackupDocs1.pdf

		AgendaRequestBackupDocs2-Contract








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services Thomas F. Bartlett


Approval of staff's recommendation to trade 32 turnout coats and 40 pair of turnout pants that are no longer usable, to Gloves, Inc. for a 
credit of  $1,800.00 toward the County's on current turnout cleaning cost.


Fire Services currently has 32 turnout coats and 40 pair of turnout pants that are surplus.  These are no longer usable due to their 
condition or they are over the 10 year life span as recommended by NFPA.  The cleaning company (Gloves, Inc.) the County uses has 
offered a $25 per piece credit on the current cleaning bill.  They will use some of the material and attachments to make repairs to other 
gear. 
 
We are not able to send this gear to Georgia Forestry as has been done in the past, since this is not serviceable gear. 
 
These pieces are non-asset and are not tracked in the County inventory system since they have a short useful life.  In summary, we need 
to dispose of this gear and Gloves, Inc. is offering $25 per piece in credits for their services.  Total credit will be $1,800.00 


Approval of staff's recommendation to send unserviceable turnout coats and pants to Gloves, Inc and to receive a $1,800 credit on a 
current turnout cleaning bill.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Steve Vaughn, GEBCorp


Steve Vaughn with GEBCorp will present a second valuation report to the Board concerning the County's Defined Benefit Retirement 


Plan. 


The Board of Commissioners voted to implement a defined benefit retirement plan in 2009.  This will be the second report on the fiscal 


status of the plan since its inception on July 1, 2009.  This report is expected to review the plan from January 1, 2010 until present time.  


No action is required, this report is for informational purposes only.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, September 23, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 18, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations 
Division by $5,546.74 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $5,546.74 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2010-2011 
Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $128,274.00.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Authorization to sign tag paperwork for and to accept receipt of any obligated monies for fuel and maintenance of one (1) vehicle that was 


purchased by the US Marshals Service for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office has received one (1) new vehicle which was purchased by the US Marshals Service for Fayette 


County for the exclusive use of the officer assigned to the South East Regional Fugitive Task Force (SERFTF).  The US Marshals 


Service has provided a 2010 Ford F150 Pick Up Truck bearing VIN#  and will also provide monies for retrofitting 


the vehicle with the appropriate emergency equipment as well as providing monies for maintenance and fuel for the vehicle. 


Requesting the Board of Commissioners to accept monies for vehicle maintenance and fuel and to authorize and sign tag paperwork on 


one (1) new vehicle acquisition which has been approved through a Memorandum of Agreement between Sheriff Wayne Hannah and the 


US Marshals Service.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 18, 2010





		Sheriff- SERFTF Vehicle Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- SERFTF Vehicle Backup







